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DREAM
LEARN
SUCCEED

For many, imagination is a dream. For Ghandhara Industries Limited, imagination is a reality.
Our reality leads us to achieve. This year, we explore our continued progress which lead to
our achievements. Our engine works on our endeavors, our road to success is lead with
experience, diversified range of our products and our expertise. The future progress for
Ghandhara Industries Limited is invested in its stakeholders. We are a company that keeps
it in front the need of its people. We believe that our future is secured with your trust.

We implement our learnings to the development of our dreams. Our dreams are that of
leaders not followers. Our success is in our dreams.
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Vision

To acquire market leadership and
contribute to the society by providing
high quality and environment friendly
ISUZU Vehicles in Pakistan's Market.
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Mission oSl  SUSTAINABILITY

To assist the society in the fight against

pollution hazards by introducing — At Ghandhara Industries Limited, we believe in an ecosystem
environment friendly vehicles. — that is everlasting and sustainable. Our endeavors in the
society are a proof of our commitment and our vision to
To maximize share of ISUZU in Pakistan. succeed as a whole for the society we operate in. We believe
that our dream of sustainable future has unlimited
To be a market & customer oriented possibilities.

organization.

To provide effective and efficient after
sales services to the customers.

To enhance performance in all operating
areas, ensuring growth of the company
and optimum retumn to the stakeholders.

To create conducive operational
environment for optimum productivity,
job satisfaction, career development and
well being of Employees.
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Company Information

Legal Advisors

S. Abid Sherazi & Co.

Ahmed and Qazi

Hassan & Hassan (Advocates)

Bankers

Mational Bank of Pakistan
Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Ltd.
JS Bank Ltd.

Faysal Bank Ltd.

The Bank of Punjab

MCE Islamic

Bank Al Falah Lid.

Meezan Bank Ltd.

Bank Al Habib Ltd.

Samba Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Share Registrar

Hameed Majeed Assoclates (Pvt.) Ltd.

4th Floor, Karachi Chamber,
Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi.

Registered Office
F-3, Hub Chawki Road, 5..T.E.
Post Box No. 2706, Karachi - 75730

Website: www.gll.com.pk
Email: info@ gil.com.pk

Board of Directors

Lt. Gen. (R) All Kuli Khan Khattak  Chairman
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Chiaef Executive
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad Director
Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia Director

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah Diractar

Mr. Shahid Kamal Khan Ind. Director
Mr. Sohail Hamead Ind. Director
Audit Committee

Mr. Sohail Hameed Chairman
Maij. (R) Muhammad Zia Member

Mr. Shahid Kamal Khan Member

Mr. Shahnawaz Damiji Secretary

Human Resource & Remuneration

Committes

Mr. Shahid Kamal Khan Chairman
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia Member
Mr. Schail Hameed Member
Mr. Hassan Mahmood Secretary

Chief Financial Officer & Company
Secretary
Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Khan

Auditors

M/s. ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co.
Chartarad Accountants

5th Floor, Karachl Chambers

Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi.

M/s. Junaid Shoaib Asad
Chartered Accountant

1/6, Block - 6, PE.C.H.5,
Mohtarma Laseq Begum Road,
off Shahrah - e - Faisal,

Mear Nursery Fly Over, Karachi,

PROGRESS AHEAD
AND BEYOND

At Ghandhara Industries Limited , our driving force is our ambition.
Our dreams are our reality. We believe that the progress of
Ghandhara Industries Limited is build on trust, vision and leadership.
Our investments in technology and preducts has kept us ahead and
beyond. Our dream is to remain successful and beyond.
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MOVING AND
SURPASSING Company Review

Ghandhara Industries Limited (GIL). is the
exclusive distributor of ISUZU products in
Pakistan, and is part of the Bibojee Group
of Companies. At GIL, we are very proud of
our performance in one of the world's
most competitive truck markets in terms
of over loading & fuel efficiency using
leading edge  engineering  and
manufacturing technologies. GIL has
developed a reputation for reliability.
conformability and cost efficient trucks.

With 55 years of history in Pakistan, GIL
has been one of the top leading automobile
companies. Our products range from
pickups to heavy duty trucks and buses.

Our ISUZU truck consistently leads the
way with superior specification & reliability.
Our customers have come to depend upon
the outstanding reliability and superb fuel
economy of our trucks, which are often
required to operate under very demanding
conditions. GIL & ISUZU are concerned for
the environment and their superior
engneering capability which ensures
compliance with the most stringent
emissions regulations. Together with our
dealership netwark, we are committed to
provide the highest level of customer
service possible, with a dependable parts
supply and service availability.
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Our Products

FTR (4x2) Rigid Truck FVR (4x2) Rigid Truck EVR (4x2) Prime Mover | NKRBus | NPRBus | MT 133/134 Bus
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Founder s
Chairman Tagrd =\ 1t Gen. (R)
Ali Kuli Khan Khattak

Chairman

Mr. Al Kuli Khan Khattak was
educated at Aitchison College
Lahore and graduated from the Royal
Military Academy Sandhurst in 1964
and holds a Masters Degree from the
Quaid-e-Azam University, Islamabad.

He belongs to a prominent military
family of Pakistan. He retired from
the Pakistan Army as its Chief of
General Staff in 1998, prior to this,
apart from holding various offices, he
also directed the Directorate General
of Military Intelligence (DGMI).

During his career he was awarded
“Hilal-e Imtiaz" After retirement he
joined the Family Business which

includes,  Tyre Manufacturing,

. Automobiles, Insurance, Cotton

Late Lt. General (R) Habibullah Khan Khattak Spinning Mills, Woollen Textiles,
Lt. General (R) M. Habibullah Khan Khattak was the Founder Chairman of the Bibojee Group Finance, Construction and Trading

of Companies. Today, the Group is an industrial empire with an extensive portfolio of
businesses comprising three cotton spinning mills, a woolen mill, two automobile
assembling plants with extensive marketing setups, a general insurance company,
Pakistan’s largest tyre manufacturing company, a construction company and two
Trusts for supporting education and wildlife protection.

Services Companies.
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Ahmad Kuli
Khan Khattak

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak was educated at
Aitchison College Lahore and graduated from the
Pakistan Air Force (PAF) Academy Risalpur in 1969.
He served PAF for nearly 21 years winning
different medals and honors including the
coveted, ‘Sword of Honour’ and Sitara-e-Basalat.
After a distinguished career as a Fighter Pilot,
(which included a major role in the induction of
F-16 Fighter Planes in the PAF) he sought
retirement from the PAF in 1987 as Wing
commander and joined the Family Business,
‘Bibojee’ / General Habibullah's Group of
Companies: his appointments in the various
companies include:

Chief Executive Ghandhara Nissan Ltd
(www.ghandharanissan.com.pk)

Chief Executive Rahman Cotton Mills Ltd.
(www.rem.com.pk)

He also serves on the following board of directors:

- Gammon Pakistan Ltd.

- Bannu Woolen Mills Ltd.

- Babri Cotton Mills Ltd.

- Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd.

- The General Tyre & Rubber Company of
Pakistan Ltd.

He has also served as chairman of All Pakistan
Textile Manufacturers Association (APTMA) and
Pakistan Automobile Association (PAMA) which
are leading associations in Pakistan.

Mrs. Shahnaz
Sajjad Ahmad

Ms. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad s
Chairman at Babri Cotton Mills Ltd.

She is on the Board of Directors at
Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd.. Janana De
Malucha Textile Mills Ltd. and Universal
Insurance Co. Ltd. (Pakistan)
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Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah
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Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah s a law
gracduate. He esrved as a Managing
Director of Sind Engineering Limited
(SEL). He also served as a CEQ in Naya
Daur Motors and Bela Engneering. Mr
Shah has over 53 years of experience
in working with different automohile
companies in Pakistan. At presentheis
advisor to the Charman - Bibojee
Group of Companies and also serving
on the Board of Ghandhara Missan
Lirnited

Director’s
Profiles
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Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia

Shahid Kamal Khan
Independent Director

Sohail Hameed
Independent Director

Director’s
Profiles

Mr. Muhammad Zia is retired Major of
Pakistan Army. He has a wvast
experience of Automobile Industry
and currently also serving on the
Board of Ghandhara Missan Limited.

Air Commodore (R) Shahid
Kamal HKhan was born in
Abbotabad. Pakistan in 1948 He
was commissioned as a fighter
pilot in the PAF in 1966 and
retired after having served for
32 years in various important
cperational, training and staff
assignments For his
meritorious services, Air Cdre
Shahid was awarded both the
Tamgha-e-Basalat and the
Sitara-e-Basalat by  the
Government of Pakistan Heisa
graduate of the Royal Air Force
Academy, Cranwell and has
dlso completed Systems Safety
course conducted at the
University of Southern
California. He is the CEQO of
EXCLAIM FIC. a UAE based
Limited Liability Company (LLC)
and MTEC Enterprise. a
Pakistan registered
proprietorship.

Mr. Schail Hameed is a Fellow
Chartered Accountant of Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
Accountant. with diversified experi
ence of over 40 years (26 years in the
Middle East) i various industries
including oil & gas, technology,
automobile,  textile, FMCG  and
construction.  Held senior positions
including Chief Executive, Executive
Vice President, with focus on Finance
and Business Development in Pakistan
and in the Middle East including
responsibility for financial, legal and
commercial aspects of mega projects
in cil & gas (upstream), development of
airports, rail (metre and high speed)
ete.

Established businesses, set up joint
ventures, obtained franchises /
representations of leading products of
companies listed in the Fortune 500.
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Human Resource

At Ghandhara Industries Limited, we ensure the efficient and effective utilization of our Human Capital
as we believe that nothing we do is more important than developing people, investing on enhancement
& promotion of their knowledge, skill, experiences, and innovativeness.

GIL embraces the new challenges by managing its Business Changes and flourishing collaborative
corporate culture in order to produce and develop the generation of leaders. The top Management aims
to retain High — performing employees by facilitating them with competitive compensation benefits.
Continuing the legacy of developing our personnel, GIL invests in numerous training programs that
concentrated on management & leadership development, professional skills, technical training, and soft
skills were conducted throughout the year, reflecting company’s zeal toward its people.

Organization Structure

Audit

Committes

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Human Rescurca
Committee

Finance, IT &
Commercial
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Management
Team

The Management team of Ghandhara believes in synergy of all the resources of the company,
including the Human Resources and Invests in them. In the end Management becomes simply
steering the resources towards the achievement of Organization's goal.

Glls leadership comprises some of the most enterprising leaders of the corporate world in
Pakistan. These individuals are responsible for conceptualizing and articulating goals that bring
our people together in pursuit of set objectives. They lead the company with a firm commitment to
the values and spirit of Ghandhara Group. In our joumey to become a profitable, growth-oriented
and sustainable company, our management structure has evolved to create a more transparent
and accessible organization. Our commitment to highest standards of integrity and transparency
has shaped Glls governance framework and processes, which are aligned to the industry's best
practices. Every employee at GIL is a part of the governance system and is required to adhere to
clearly laid out policies and procedures.

Annual Report 2018 20

At GIL, we support our leadership culture through unique systems and policies which
ensure open communication, foster an environment of employee and partner privacy,
and guarantee the well-being and safety of our employees. Our core values form the
basis of everything we do at GIL; from formal decision making to how we conduct our
business to spot awards and recognition. At GIL, we never forget what we stand for.

We strongly believe in the dignity and value of our people. We must consistently treat
each other with respect and strive to create an organizational environment in which
individuals are fairly treated, encouraged and empowered to contribute, grow and
develop themselves and help to develop each other. We do not tolerate any form of
harassment or discrimination.

Success requires us to continually strive to produce breakthrough ideas that result in
improved solutions and services. We encourage challenges to the status quo and seek
organizational environments in which ideas are generated, nurtured and developed.
Ghandhara Industries Limited appreciates employees for well thought out risks taken in
all realms of business, and for the results achieved due to them, acknowledging the fact
that not all risks will result in success.
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GIL has signed MoC

ISUZU GRAMND PRIX 2017:

Service Campalgn
Scheduled in Knmehi from
10th Getobher to Tth
Kovember 2047

GIL conducied the sorvies
clinle all ower Pakistan,

Omn spot rouble shoating
and technical training to
Horth Reglon Army
succassiulty completed:

Gl eonducted training for
Morih Reglon Army in
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Ghandhara Indusires Lid
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Mala 2018, The event look
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{Memarandum ol
Collabmration) wilh M. GIL technical team
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Tech Foundation). Technical Competition and customer confldence on spot troubleshooting Key Presentation
where techniclans fram on GIL, It's dealerships was provided. GIL alm was Ceremony of lBuzu buses
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Lraining pravider and the il allaws the parlicipants o fieet aperotors. minimuem tirme and efforts. during m ceremaony of achigved another econamy. It is the main
Parlnering Organkzation In direclly measure heir Our trchnleal staff Training reiated to ISUTU key presentstion to milestone by Bource of income of 67.5%
order lo enhance quality of perlormance on a level educated the customers maintenance of GIL Vies Chaneelior B2, The manufacturing first OGRA ol the Pakistani's. GIL
Iraining delivery, playing lield against their about proper malntenanee products was also GChancellor spprecixted compliant, Isuzu FYZ HD bafieves In Turther
enlerprise compeliliveness besl peers around the of vehicles and provided provided to ensure & GIL's offort of delivering GIL- Isuzu Service leam Eurcd Prime movers (340 atrangthaning of this
and peeess lo decen! worhd. spot solutions io genernl hnssie-iree experience the quality of busea In providing truck training to and 360 hp) delivered by soctor and lo promale our
customer querles. with our products. time. Fak Army a1 Multan. DTOD logistics. Iarmers.
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financial independence.
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Corporate Social Responsibilty ‘ - 2
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As a socially responsible company, we at GIL are committed to conduct business in a manner : 2 ‘
that benefit society and also ensures our long-term sustainability. Corporate social -
Responsibility is therefore an integral part of the GIL ways of working. The company is working

towards realization of its dreams to be a company that society wants to exist. — e —

: |

-—"’"l -

Health & Safety

At GIL, our Safety Policy conveys the following simple message:
“SAFETY WILLALWAYS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER PRODUCTION, SALES AND PROFIT"

GHANDHARA SPONSORED
CRICKET TOURNAMENT (AGA KHAN) The company continues to comply with all safety, health and environmental laws and

regulation and at the same time, we recognize the benefit of appropriate safety and
environmental management as one of our highest priorities.

During the year, GIL sponsored Aga Khan Ramazan Cricket Toumament and played an
important role in promoting development of new talent. GIL provided local talent a chance to
play with super stars to our national cricket team.

QISSE KNAUM - FURNLY FUver y

GIL sponsored a cultural event in collaboration with Cultoor. The event was a showcase of
Pakistan and Afghanistan culture. The event covered variety of activities including poetry, folk
music concert and much more.
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Notice of Meeting

Motice is hereby given that the 55th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of GHANDHARA INDUSTRIES
LIMITED will be held at 11:30A.M on Tuesday, 23rd October, 2018 at F-3, Hub Chauki Road, S.I.TE., Karachi to
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business
1) To confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on April 10th, 2018.

2) To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2018, together with Directors’ and Auditors’ report thereon.

3) To consider and approve the payment of final Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares. The Board of Directors has
recommended payment of final Cash Dividend of Rs. 15.6 per share i.e. 156% and issuance of bonus shares
in proportion of one share held for each one share held i.e. 100% for the year ended 30th June, 2018.

4)  To appoint Auditors for the financial year ending June 30, 2019 and to fix their remuneration.

5) Any other business with the permission of the Chair.
Special Business

6) To consider, subject to declaration of the final dividend as above, to capitalize a sum of Rs.213,044,220 by
way of issue of 21,304,422 fully paid bonus shares of Rs.10 each and if thought fit to pass an ordinary
resolution in the matter.

7)  To consider to pass the following ordinary resolutions:

a) “RESOLVED that the transactions caried out in normal course of business with associated
companies during the year ended June 30, 2018 be and are hereby ratified and approved.”

b) “RESOLVED that the Chief Executive of the Company be and is hereby authorized to approve all
the transactions carried out and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated
companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2019 and in this connection the Chief Executive be
and is hereby also authorized to take any and all necessary actions and
sign/execute any and all such documentsfindentures as may be required in this regard on behalf
of the Company.”

Staterment under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2017 in the above matters mentioned initem Nos. 6and 7 is
annexed.

By order of the Board
Karachi
October 02, 2018
Iftikhar Ahmed Khan
Company Secretary

Notes:

(a) The Share Transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from October 16, 2018 to October 23, 2018
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting and to determine entitlement of cash
dividend and bonus shares. No transfer will be accepted for registration during this period.

(b) A member eligible to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend,
speak and vote instead of himself/herself. Proxies in order to be effective must be valid and received by the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding of the Meeting and must be duly stamped, signed
and witnessed. A member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy.

(c) CDC shareholders are requested to bring their original Computerized National Identity Cards, Account, Sub
Account Number and Participant's Number in the Central Depository System for identification purposes for
attending the Meeting. In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the
Meeting.

(d) Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide notifications dated August 18, 2011 and July
05, 2012 made it mandatory that dividend warrants should bear CNIC number of the registered members,
therefore, members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid Computerized National Identity
Cards to the Company / share registrar are requested to send the same directly to Company's share registrar
M/s Hameed Majeed Associates(Pvt.) Limited. Failure to provide the same would constrain the Company
under Section 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 to withhold payment of dividend.

(e) If the Company receives consent from the members holding at least 10% shareholding residing in a city, to
participate in the meeting through video-link at least seven (07) days prior to date of the meeting, the
Company will arrange facility of video-link in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

To avail this facility please provide the following information to our Share Registrar M/s Hameed Majeed
Associates (Pvt.) Limited.

“I/We, of , being a member of Ghandhara Industries Limited,
holder of ordinary share(s) as per Registered Folio No. hereby opt for video conference
facility at o

Signature of member

(i Shareholders are informed that Income Tax Ordinance 2001, as amended by Finance Act, 2018, has
described 20% withholding tax on dividend payment to non-filers while filers of income tax returns will be
liable to withholding tax @15%.

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 20%, all
the shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website
of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL,
otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 20% instead of 15%.

In case of Joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer ar non-filer and tax will be
deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified by the shareholder, in writing
as, to our Share Registrar, or if no notification, each joint holder shall be assumed to have an equal number
of shares.

Shareholders are advised to provide their NTN to Share Registrar of the Company for availing the benefit of
withholding tax rate applicable to filers. Information in respect of joint shareholding be provided on the format
given below to compute withholding tax of each shareholder accordingly:
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Hame of Folio / Prt. Shareholding CNIC Signature
Principal / Joint Holder | ID & Acct %
Mo.

a) Shareholder's Details

Name of the Shareholder (s)

(@)

(h)

0

(0]

(k)

Shareholders claiming tax exemption under clause 47(B) of Part IV of the Second Schedule of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 or under any other provision of the law are requested to provide valid exemption certificate
or copy of stay order, if any, before the date of book closure, to the Share Registrar of the Company as
required vide FBR clarification letter No. 1(43) DG (WHT)/2008 - Vol. II- 66417-R dated 12 May 2015. In case
of non-submission of the requisite documents, deduction of tax under relevant sections shall be made as per
requirements of law.

Members are requested to immediately notify any change in their mailing address to our Share Registrar's
Office — M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., 4th Floor, Karachi Chambers, Hasrat Mohani Road,
Karachi.

This is to inform that SECP in accordance with SRO 470(1)/2016 dated 31 May 2016, through which SECP
has allowed companies to circulate the annual audited accounts to its members through CD/DVD/ USB
instead of transmitting the hard copies at their registered addresses, subject to consent of shareholders and
compliance with certain other conditions, the Company has obtained shareholders' approval in its Annual
General Meeting held on October 31, 2016. Accordingly, Annual Report of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2018 is dispatched to the shareholders through CD. However, if a shareholder requests for a hard
copy of Annual Accounts, the same shall be provided free of cost within seven days of receipt of such
request.

Further, SECP through its Notification No. SRO. 787(1)/2014, dated September 08, 2014 has allowed
companies to circulate Annual Audited Financial Statements along with Notice of Annual General Meeting
through email instead of sending the same through post, to those members who desire to avail this facility.
The members who desire to opt to receive aforesaid statements and notice of Annual General Meeting
through e-mail are requested to provide their written consent on the Standard Request Form available on the
Company's website: www.gil.com.pk.

Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the
Company, which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it become due payable
shall vest with the Federal Government after compliance of procedures prescribed under the Company Act,
2017, Section 244(l)(a) of the Act requires the Company to give a 90 days’ notice to the members to file their
claims with the Company. Shareholders are hereby informed that a list of all unclaimed dividend has been
added on the Company's website: hitp://gil.com.pk/page-Unclaimed-dividend-and-sharesAny member
affected by this notice is advised to write to or call at the office of the Company’s share registrar M/s Hameed
Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., 4th Floor, Karachi Chambers, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi during normal
working hours.

Payment of cash dividend electronically (Mandatory).

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution of
Dividend) Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend to its shareholder only
through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Shareholders
are requested to fill in “Electronic Credit Mandate Form™” as reproduced below and also available on
Company's website and send it duly signed along with a copy of valid CNIC/NTN to their respective CDC
participant / CDC Investor account services (in case of shareholding in Book Entry Form) or to the Company's
Share Registrar M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Lid (in case of shareholding in Physical Form):

Folio # /CDSAccount No.(s)

CNIC NO. (Copy attached)

Mobile/Landline no.

b) Shareholder's Bank Details

Title of Bank Account

International Bank Account Number (IBAN)

Bank's Name

Branch's name and address

It is stated that the above mentioned information is correct and in case of any change herein |/we will
immediately intimate the Share Registrar accordingly.

Statement Under Section 134 (3) of The Companies Act, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business, given in agenda item No.6 of
the Motice that will be considered by the members.

1) Agenda ltem No. 6 of the Notice - issue of Bonus Shares to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution

The Board of Directors has recommended to the members of the Company to the issue of fully paid bonus
shares @ 100% for the year ended June 30, 2018. Subject to approval of the Board of Directors’
recommendation as above, the resolution as under will be considered to be passed by the members as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED that a sum of Rs. 213,044,220 out of the profit for the year ended June 30, 2018 be capitalized
and applied in making payment in full of 21,304,422 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each and that the said shares
be allotted as fully paid up bonus shares to those members of the Company whose names appear in the
register of members on October 15, 2018 @ 100% i.e. in the proportion of one share for every one existing
shares held by the members and that such new shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company except that they shall not qualify for final cash dividend declared for the
year June 30, 2018.

For the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Directors be and are hereby authorized to take all
necessary steps in the matter and to settle any question or difficulties that may arise in regard to the
distribution of the said new shares as they think fit."

The Directors are interested in this business only to the extent of their entittement of dividends and bonus
shares as ordinary shareholders.
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2) Agenda ltem No. 7(a) of the Motice - Transactions carried out with associated companies during the year
ended June 30, 2018 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution

The transactions carried out in normal course of business with associated companies (Related parties) were
being approved by the Board as recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant to clause
15 of the Listed Companies Corporate Governance Regulations, 2017.

During the Board meeting it was pointed out by the Directors that as the majority of Company Directors were
interested in thisfthese transaction(s) due to their common directorship and holding of shares in the
associated companies, the quorum of directors could not be formed for approval of this/these transaction(s)
which has/have to be approved by the shareholders in the General Meeting.

In view of the above, the transactions conducted during the financial year ended June 30, 2018 with
associated company as shown in relevant notes of the Audited Financial Statements are being placed before
the shareholders for their consideration and approval/ratification.

The Directors are interested in the resolution to the extent of their common directorships and their
shareholding in the associated companies.

Agenda ltem No. 7(b) of the Notice - Authorization to the Chief Executive for the transactions carried out and
to be carried out with associated companies during the ensuing year ending June 30, 2019 to be passed as
an Ordinary Resolution

The Company would be conducting transactions with associated companies in the normal course of
business. The majority of Directors are interested in these transactions due to their common directorship and
shareholding in the associated companies. Therefore, such transactions with associated companies have to
be approved by the shareholders.

In order to comply with the provisions of clause 15 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017, the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive to approve transactions carried out
and to be carried out in normal course of business with associated companies during the ensuing year ending
June 30, 20189.

The Directors are interested in the resolutions to the extent of their common directorships and shareholding
in the associated companies and the privileges attached thereto only.
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Chairman’s Review

It's an honor to announce that the Company has yet again achieved highest ever profits for the Fourth consecutive
year with an after tax profit of Rs.1,362 million (Rs.796 million last year). This increase in profit is achieved due to
better planning and execution of management plans enabling the Company to achieve highest ever sales in
history of Ghandhara Industries Limited.

Company's Performance

The Company sold 4,000 units of trucks and busses as compared to 2,903 units last year. Overall market
conditions remained competitive and despite the challenges, our performance has been outstanding this year
compared with industry participants. The Company will continue to provide same quality services and
state-of-the-art product to all its valuable customers for the years to come.

Future Outlook

Despite unusual variations in economic scenario of the country, the Company is aware of growing market needs
and is continuously adapting to the shift in the overall market conditions. Keeping this in view, the Company is
proud to introduce new product in its pick-up truck range by the name of D-Max to further strengthen confidence
of stakeholder thereby meeting their demands in this category.

Foregoing in view, we feel short to medium term outlook of your company will be quite positive and are confident
that the good results of 2018 will be sustained in 2019 also.

Acknowledgement

As good results are first and foremost due to people, we would like to thank all the employees whose efforts
played major role in achieving the good results during the current year. We would also like to express our thanks
to Isuzu Motors Limited, Marubeni Corporation, Shareholders, Dealers, Customers and Vendors for their
co-operation and the trust shown in our products. | would also like to record our gratitude to our bankers for their
contribution and understanding shown to us and we look forward to mutual beneficial business relationships.
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Directors’ Report to Shareholders

The directors of your company take pleasure in presenting the 55th annual report & the Company’s audited
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Economy and Market

Pakistan's economy has continued to grow at an encouraging pace but macroeconomic position still demands a
significant improvement to shorten the trade deficit gap which has reached everlasting high figures in FY
2017-2018. Continuous implementation of various projects including CPEC, rise in agricultural recovery and
positive growth in consumption have played major role in recent macroeconomic performance. However,
Pakistan's external position remained under stress which was mainly due to increased imports standing at a
record level reflecting positive domestic demand, rising oil and gas prices and implementation of CPEC related
projects. Also foreign remittances did not post significant growth; exports have slightly recovered as compared to
previous years due to favorable government measures. Accordingly current account deficit elevated to a new high
level at the end of Fiscal year 2017-2018.

Moving to the automabile industry highlights, the industry as a whole is continuously growing since past few years
driven by the government's efforts and favorable market demand, in light of evolving success the board is pleased
to inform that your company has outreached the trademark sales this year where annual demand for ISUZU
trucks and buses grew by 38% selling thereby 4,000 units as compared to 2,903 units sold last year which is a
commendable number showing Company's growth.

Accordingly, the Company is enjoying handsome market share resulting in improved results with an impressive all
round performance setting new records on production, sales, eamnings and job creation.

Principal Activities of the Company.

Ghandhara Industries Limited (the Company) is incorporated in Pakistan as a Public Limited Company since 1963
and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). The Company's principal activity is the assembly,
progressive manufacture and marketing of ISUZU buses, trucks and pick-up trucks.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Despite the fact that Company's financial performance has left a remarkable note in the market crossing all
internal and external sales barriers while achieving new milestones, but still market competition and exchange rate
will be key factors which may have an impact on financial position of the Company.

Financial Performance
The financial results are summarized below:

2018 2017
Rupees in 000

(222,394)

1,362,420

(224,637)

(450,612)
796,013

Earnings per Share
The Basic and Diluted earnings per share after tax is Rs. 63.95 (2017:
Rs. 37.36).

Ghandhara Industries Limited is setting new challenge for the future by
achieving highest ever profits for three consecutive years Rs. 1.36 Billion
in current year, Rs. 796 million in the year 2016-2017 and Rs. 745.8 in
the year 2015-2016.

Operating Results

Sales

In-line with the booming industry sales, your company achieved sales
revenue of Rs. 16.77 Billion which is 56% higher than last year of Rs.
10.74 Billion. The Company provides state of the art after sales service,
customer oriented customization and reliable products thereby
increasing customers’ confidence which resulted in higher sales. This
trend will continue in future based on introduction of new models along
with new product line ISUZU DMAX.

Gross profit

The Company posted increased gross profits by 41% which rose from
Rs.2,203 million last year to Rs. 3,111 million in current year. Despite
better cost management, sales mix and operational efficiencies, the GP
ratic has decreased by 1.96% compared to previous year due
depreciating rupee value and increased steel prices.

Distribution and Administrative Expenses

Increased sales activity along with increased inflationary prices have put
extreme pressure on the all outfiows pertaining to distribution and
administrative expenses. However, the Company is aware of the
challenges being faced by economy and is ready to combat by better
planning and negotiations.

Finance costs

Despite increase in State Bank's base rate, the company has been able
to reduce finance cost to 1% of sales compared with 2% last year due to
better negotiation with banks. The management was well aware that
increased activity will put pressure on finance cost therefore took acute
steps to deliver optimum benefit to the company through better financial
management.

Appropriation of Profit

Profit avallable for appropriation

Appropriations:

Proposed Final Cash Dividend @ 156% i.e. Rs. 15.6 per share
(2017: @ 150%: L.e. Rs. 15 per share)

Proposed bonus shares @ 100% i.e. 1 share for every 1 share held
(2017: @ 0% i.e. Nil)

Un-appropriate profit carried forward

PROFIT AFTER TAX
i

1362430

2018
Rupesas’ 000

2,651,0M

332,349

213,044

2,105,678



4 1 Ghandhara Industries Limited,

Annual Report 2018 42

Holding Company
Bibojee services (Pvt) Limited, incorporated in Pakistan, is our holding company by way of direct ownership of
39.16% shares and certain other indirect shareholding.

Dividend and Bonus Shares

In the light of the financial position of the Company the Board of Directors has proposed a final cash dividend of
Rs.15.6 per share i.e. 156% and Bonus shares up to 100% i.e. one share for each share held for the year ended
June 30, 2018 in its meeting held on September 19th, 2018.

This shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders in their meeting scheduled on October 23rd, 2018.

Board of Directors and its Committees
The Board of Directors of the Company as at June 30, 2018 consists of:

_Total Number of Directors: .
Male 06
Female 01
Composition
Independent Directors 02
Non-Executive Directors 04
Executive Directors 01

The names of the directors as at June 30, 2018 are as follows

- Lt. Gen. (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
- Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

- Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad

- Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia

- Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah

- Mr. Shahid Kamal Khan

- Mr. Sohail Hameed Khan

Dr. Pervez Hassan and Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak were retired upon completion of their term; accordingly
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad and Mr. Sohail Hameed Khan were elected during elections held in the month of
April 2018.

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR&R) committee
The committee consists of four members; Consisting of non-executive directors including an independent director.

The terms of reference of this Committee have been determined in accordance with guidelines provided in the
listing regulations. The Committee meets to review and recommend all elements of the compensation,
organization and employee development policies relating to the senior executives' remuneration and to approve
all matters relating to the remunerations of the executive directors and members of the management committee.

The committee held three meetings during 2017-2018.

Audit Committee

The committee consists of three members including non-executive directors and head of internal audit as
secretary to the committee, chairman of the committee is an independent director. The Board Audit Committee
assists the Board in fuffilling its oversight responsibilities, primarily in reviewing and reporting financial and
non-financial information to share-holders, systems of internal control and risk management and the audit
process. It has the autonomy to call for information from management and to consult directly with the external
auditors or advisors as considered appropriate.

The Chief Financial Officer regularly attends the Board Audit Committee meetings by invitation to present the
accounts. After each meeting, the Chairman of the Committee reports to the Board. The terms of reference of this
committee have been determined in accordance with guidelines provided in the listing regulations.

Board and its Committees' meetings

Dwuring the year under review Six meetings of Board of Directors (BoD), Four meetings of Board Audit Committee
and three meetings of the HR&R Committee were held. All the meetings were held in Pakistan. Attendance at the
Board meetings was as below:

Attendance
Name of Director Status BOD BAC HR&R

Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak Retired on term completion 3/3 a

Lt. Gen. (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak ReElected on April 10, 2018 6/6 3/4

Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak ReElected on April 10, 2018 &6/6 = 3/3
Dr. Pervez Hassan Retired on term completion 0/3 =

Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia ReElected on April 10, 2018 &/6 4/4 3/3
Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah ReElected on April 10, 2018 5/6 4/4 272
Mr. Shahid Kamal Khan Re-Elected on April 10, 2018 2/& = 1/1
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad Elected on April 10, 2018 3/3 -

Mr. Sohail Hameed Khan Elected on April 10, 2018 2/3 1/1 1/1

Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and Committees of the Board
The evaluation of Board's role of oversight and its effectiveness is appraised by the Board itself. The main areas
of focus are;

+  Achieving corporate goals and objectives as defined in the Company’s vision and mission statements.

» Strategy formulation and dissemination of directions to the management for sustainable planning and
operation; and

+  Evaluation of Board's Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities as per defined
terms of reference.

Remuneration of Directors

The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance with the Code
of Corporate Governance, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own remuneration. The
Company does not pay remuneration to non-executive directors except fee for attending the meetings. For
information on remuneration of Directors and CEO in FY 2017-18, please refer note 40 to the Financial
Statements.

Internal Audit Function

Ghandhara Industries Limited has an independent Internal Audit function who has suitably designed internal
controls to safeguard financial and operational reporting of the Company. The Board Audit Committee quarterly
reviews the appropriateness of resources and authority of this function. The Head of Internal Audit functionally
reporls to the Audit Committee. The Board Audit Committee approves the audit plan, based on an annual and
quarterly assessment of the operating areas.

The Internal Audit function carries out reviews on the financial, operational and compliance controls, and reports
its findings functionally to the Board Audit Committee and administratively to the Chief Executive.

The Board understands its responsibility towards smooth functioning of internal financial eontrols and continuously
strives to achieve the best practices through its regular governance.
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Auditors

Present co-auditors, Messrs.'ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co, Chartered Accountants and Messrs.” Junaidy
Shoaib Asad, Chartered Accountants have retired. Being eligible, Messers. ShineWing Hammed Chaurdhri have
offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors endorses recommendation of the Audit Committee
for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2019 to the
shareholders for approval.

Pattern of shareholding
The pattern of shareholding as on 30th June 2018 & additional information thereabout required under Code of
Corporate Governance are annexed.

Communication with Stakeholders

The Company focuses on the importance of the communication with the shareholders. The annual, half yearly
and quarterly reports are distributed to them within the time specified in the Companies Act, 2017. The activities
of the Company are updated on its web site at http://gil.com.pk/, on timely basis.

Related Party Transactions

The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with related various related parties.
Amounts due from and to related parties, amounts due from executives and remuneration of directors and
executives are disclosed in the relevant notes. Other material transactions with related parties are disclosed in
note 41 to the Financial Statements.

Responsibility towards environment and society

Ghandhara Industries Limited is well aware of its responsibility towards the environment and the society and
makes its utmost possible efforts towards the betterment of the society generally and its employees specifically.
Various seminars were undertaken during the year for health and safety education of its employees to develop a
mindset for safe work and less hazardous environment. Several contributions were also made towards the
education, promotion of sports and health of underprivileged citizens of the society as mentioned under CSR
activities.

Subsequent Events
No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken place between
the end of the financial year and the date of report.

Code of Corporate Governance

The Board is pleased to state that the management of the Company is compliant with the best practices of
corporate governance. A statement of compliance is annexed on pages 63 and 64. The Board acknowledges its
responsibility in respect of the corporate and financial reporting framework and thus states that:

The financial statement prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

. International Financial and Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statement.

. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the
listing regulations.

The highlights of operating and financial data for the last six years are annexed.

. The value of investments of the Company’s gratuity as on June 30, 2018 is Rs. Nil.

Future outlook

The current trade deficit along with reduction in foreign reserves has emerged as a big challenge for Pakistan
which the new government in collaboration with regulatory authorities has to control in order to ease
macroeconomic pressures. However, the authorities have started managing the pressure and recent currency
depreciation against USD by almost 22% since December 2017 along with increasing the benchmark interest
rate by 175 basis points to 7.5% have put pressure on import oriented businesses.

The Company is all set to demonstrate strong performance and competitiveness. The management with
well-established plans and, is well positioned to grow its share in the Trucks and Buses market. Also the
introduction of new product line (pick-up truck) by name of ISUZU DMAX will create sufficient potential demand
in local market which will ultimately benefit the stakeholders of the Company and Economy as a whole,

Acknowledgement

The board acknowledges the trust and confidence in the Company and its products by the shareholders, valued
suppliers, customers, dealers and bankers and thanks them for their co-operation and support. The Board is
pleased to record its appreciation for the continued diligence and devotion of the employees. The Board takes
the opportunity to thank the Company’s principal ‘Isuzu Motors Limited' and trading house ‘Marubeni
Corporation’ for their support and assistance.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Lt. Gen. (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak
Chairman Chief Executive

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi
Dated: September 19, 2018
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6 Years at a Glance

Financial Performance-Profitability

Gross profit margin % 18.55 20.51 26.55 20.95 12.19 17.23
EBITDA margin to salas % 13.33 14.04 21.63 15.74 7.82 13.69
Pre tax margin % 11.71 11.61 18.85 16.74 (.64 6.51
Met profit margin % 8.10 7.40 12.80 6.79 0.92 4.54
Return on eguity-before tax % 41.58 33.78 35.33 14.54 0.78 9.18
Raturn on aquity-after tax % 28.84 2157 2399 8.85 1.12 B.40
Cperating Performance / Liguidity

Total assels turnover Times 1.39 1.25 1.13 0.08 0.68 0.68
Fixed azsals turnovear Timas 6.81 531 .00 1.97 1.47 1.65
Debtors turnover Times TR 2883 38.54 26.00 859 13.07
Debtors Wrnowvear Days 6.32 12.66 Q.47 15 38 28
Inventory turnover Times 2.58 3.18 3.83 3.12 1.80 2.04
Invantory turnover Days 142.51 11549 89538 17 203 179
Craditors turnover Tirmes 3211 28.45 25,46 14.11 8.82 15.37
Creditors turnover Diays 11.37 12.39 14.34 25 ar 24
Operating cycle Days 137.486 115.76 a0.52 106 204 183
Currant ratio 1.32 1.33 .62 1.56 1.16 1.12
Quick [ acid test ratio 0.36 055 07a 085 0.52 0.47
Capital Structure Analysis

Breakup value [ shara As 221.75 173.21 145.91 105.59 894 .83 9367
Earning per share (pre tax) R= 8219 HB .62 51.54 15.35 0.74 B.60
Earning per shana (after tax) Hs 63.95 37.96 B 10.50 1.13 6.00
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Summary of Financial Position

Aupeaeas 000
Sumnmary of Financial Position
Share capital 213,044 213,044 213,044 213,044 213,044 213,044
Reserves 2,661,071 1.612,010 1.022.517 365,002 133,989 103,933
Shareholder's fund [ equity 4,724,129 3,690,168 3,108,553 2,249,388 2020212 1,805,571
Deferred liabilities 80,181 45615 a7.602 30,545 24 BB 21,813
Property, plant & equipment 2463605 2.021,453 1,841,250 1.674,230 1,678,603 1,703,088
Long term assets 17.242 16,624 15,783 5,831 4,783 7344
Met current assels [ Working capital 2,278,947 1.6812,645 1,194,481 HEE.524 261,336 258,384
e e A Hupms 'DDG ...................................................
Summary of Profil & Loss
Met sales 16,772,383 10,740,631 5,825,579 3,223,329 2.486,127 2,812,858
Gross profit 3,111,004 2,202,863 1,546,638 68,824 00,6896 484,624
Qperating profit 2,186,464 1.471.262 1.211.178 434,131 192,864 359,081
Profil before tax 1,964,070 1,246,625 1,098,105 3zrme 15,812 183,166
Profit after tax 1,362,420 796,013 745,861 223,788 24,068 127,736
EBITDA 2,235,433 1,471,268 1,238,483 518,222 182 864 385138
Surnmary of Cash Flows
Met cash flow from operating activities (2,372.485) (68,215) 88679 1,002 281 141,723 (401,667)
Met cash Hhow from investing activities (471.631) (111.916) (73.468) (12.428) (2.472) (11.426)
MNel cash flow from financing activities {303.223) (198.826) [58.075) (9.835) (10.452) (8.396)
Changes in cash & cash aguivalents (3,147.339) (37B.957) 457,136 280,018 128,753 (421,483)

Cash & cash equivalents (3,134,530} 12,748 391,706 (66.430) (1,045448) (1,174,247)
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Vertical Analysis

Financial Position
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Graphical Presentation

The Company's distinguished performance in its operations is attributable to the effective management of controllable factors,
measured against key financial indicators. This has resulted in the Company accumulate greater financial strength and continue to

grow sustainably over the course of time.

Sales and Gross Profit Rs. 000"
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=iHat Sales e ¥ ross Prafit Hargin

The Comparry remamed focused towards delrerng upon s obectrre of sustamable grosth
theowunh valise creaton. Accardmgly, the momentum of merrasmeg sabes comtmued throogheat
the year on account of positree market performance, It resulted machesement of Sales
Rrevenue of Bs 14 8 bibon, a 54 1% merease from last year. This has been the ighest ever sales
revrnue throughout the hestory of GIL

The mprosvemient m sales rranslated n nerease gross. profits. Resultantly. groas margm
mereased from Rs 2 208 million to Rs 3111 milbon, up by 41 2% Howeeer, a deerease around
1 84%, harer b ohhserveel m GP marem ratin as comapred weth last year mamty due to Currency
dealuanon and non-transfor of the same 1o customer. Management s aaare of the factual
ehanges m Eoonoermyy and has adopted cost efficent stareqies to combat the decrease m
rrargm m firhre perods

Liquidity Raties Rs. 0OD
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An mipressre toplme has allowed the Compary ta outperform s previcus best efforts as the
Compary has achieved & profit afer ta of Rs. L362 mibion, an mcrease of almost T1%. Also RIOE of
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Quarterly Performance

Analysis

Sales

Q3
24%

The Comparny weinessed an monrasng sales irend through outthe fiscal year. Hogher sales
wolioner remamnerd attnbutable to the morease m marlat demand of the Comparmy'as
prodiucts, mots classe seres e NER and HPR_ also m heaey duty senes oe PYZ and PYR,
salrs for which mereased by 348% amed LATY,: respectrady as compared wath Last year.
Improvameg las ard onder situation across the oouniry and pessteee Foomorma sentrments
pertammg to stomohde smdustry contnbuted to the achiesement of eer highest salbes,
with numbers reachng 4 000 1mits mark

Gross Profit
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Gross Profit {GH] of the first two quarnters were able 1o contrbube around 55% of total G2,
Hwever, desgite mcreaging sales m Lasl two quartens. gross profits decreased winch were
ity chos Lo sibe of bagh vatwe stock due te mpact of currendy degreciaton

Profit Before Taxation
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Profit befone tax (PET) havas moreased smee Lest year by 575% howrsaer last quarter PRT has
decrrased mamby due to sale of stock wich had absorbed the recent sharp nse m JEY.
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Pattern of Shareholding Categories of Shareholders

As at 30th June 2018 As at June 30, 2018

Categories of Category wise Mo,

MNo. of Having Shares

Sharsholders [ From —— ] To ] | ' S oo Ao
1 Director's, CEQ, Their Spouse and Minor Children
3773 1 100 88,328 0.41
889 101 500 247 959 1.16 Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak (Chiel Executive) 12,000 0.058
1 9 132 1 Lt Gen. (R} Ali Kuli Khan Khattak (Director) 9 0.000
;g ?ﬂm1 5’% ggg?g? > % Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah (Director) 400 0.002
o L ) io-hs i RS o T A - LihZ Mr. Shahid Kamal Khan {Independent Dirgclor) 8 0.000
58 5,001 10,000 416,129 1.95 Major (R) Muhammad Zia (Director) 100 0.000
11 10,001 15,000 133,993 0.63 Mr. Sohail Hameed Khan (Independent Director) 1 0.000
4 15,001 20,000 73573 0.35 Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad {Director) 24,587 0.115
11 20,001 25,000 260,372 1.22
3 5,001 30,000 58,400 013 2 Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related Parties
2 30,001 35,000 63,624 0.30 Bibojee Services (Pvi) Limited 8,343,397 39.163
1 35,001 40,000 36,000 017 Bibojes Investmants (Pvt) Limited 21,408 0.100
3 45,001 50,000 146,850 0.69 The General Tyre and Aubber Company of Pakistan Limited 100,700 0.473
Ghandhara Miszan Limited 4,066,168 18.086
: g'ﬁ:‘l g'g Egg’g;g gﬁ _ The Universal Insurance Company Limited 1,184,148 5.558
1 65,001 70,000 66,168 0.31)] 3 |[NIT&ICP
1 70,001 75,000 74,200 0.35 |
1 75,001 80,000 76,300 0.36 | Investment Corporation of Pakistan 4014 0.019
2 80,001 85,000 168,450 0.79 CDC- Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust 7277 0.550
1 100,001 105,000 100,700 0.47
! s s 4 , NBFCs, DFls, ful, i F 2,577, 12
] 110,001 115,000 112,500 053 Banks, NBFCs s, Takaful, Pension and Stock Funds 577,400 098
1 115,001 120,000 117,277 0.55 § |Investment and Modaraba Companies 3,528 0.017
1 360,001 365,000 364,000 1.71
1 455,001 460,000 458,050 215 6 Insurance Companies 2,043,700 9.583
1 625,001 630,000 626,850 2.94
! ' . 7 Joint Stock Companies 76,855 0.361
1 1,180,001 1185000 1,184,148 5.56 "
1 1,400,001 1,405,000 1,402 450 6.58 a Other Companles, Corporate Bodies, Trust ate 210,854 0.890
1 1,635,001 1,640,000 1,638,926 7.69
1 2,255,001 2,260,000 2 258,242 10.60 ] General Public (Local) 2,517,B68 11.818
1 3,995,001 4,000,000 3,897,229 18.76
L b i el bl ocheatoe oo St i Lraeren b L 21, 422 100.00
1 6,085,001 6,090,000 6,085,155 28.56 e
5310 21,3044 100.00 10 |Shareholders Holding 05.00% Or More
* Mote: There is no shareholding in the slab not mentioned Bibojee Services (Pvi) Limited 8.343.397 29163
Universal Insurance Co. Limited 1,184,148 5.558
- Ghandhara Nissan Limited 4,086,168 19,088
Categories of Shareholders Fotl st ancoren o i
g EFU Life Assurance Limited 1,402,450 6.583
Shareholder's Category Number Shares Held Percentage 11 |Trading In The Shares Of Company During The Year By The Directars
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
Director's, CEQ, Their Spouse and Minor Children 7 37,105 017 And Their Spouses And Minor Children. Nil il
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties 8 13,715,821 64.38
NIT & ICP 2 121,20 0.57
Banks, NBFCs, DFIs, Takaful, Pension and Stock Funds a8 2577400 12.10
Investment and Modaraba Companies 3 3,528 0.0z
Insurance Companies 9 2,043,700 859
Joint Stock Companies 14 76,855 0.36
Other Companies, Corporate Bodies, Trust etc N 210,854 D88
General Public (Local) 5,198 2,517 868 11.82

5,310 21,304,422 100.00
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Statement Of Compliance with
Listed Companies

(Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of direclors are seven as per Ihe following:

Male: 6 Femalle: 1

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Mr. Shahid Kamal Khan
Mr. Sohail Hameed

Lt. Gen. (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmad

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shah

Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia

Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

Independent Directors

Other Non-executive Director

Executive Director

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including this comparny
(excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicabla).

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate sleps have been taken Lo disseminale it throughout the
company along with its supporting policies and proceduras,

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the comparny. A complele
record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they wera approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matiers have been taken by board! shareholders as
empoweared by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the board for this purpose.
The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of board.

8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and thase
Regulations.

9. The Board has amanged a presantation for the directors in order to appraise them with the significant changes introduced through
Regulations. This also covered changes introduced through Companies Act, 2017 with regards to powers of Board of Directors and
disclosure requirements in financial staterments. The incoming direclors are also provided wilth appropriate briefing and orentation
material to enable them firsthand knowledge on the working of the Company. Further, out of seven, one is Certified Director and three
directors meet the criteria of exemption due to thelr experience as per regulation 20(2) of the Regulations. Remaining director will acquire
the required directors training certification within the time specified in the Code.

10.

11.

12.

13

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms
and conditions of employment, however, the CFO and Company Secretary of the Company iz the same person. The Company is in the
process of appointing separate person as Company Secretary.
CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial staternents before approval of the board.
The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
Audit Committee Mr. Sohail Hameed - Chairman
Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia - Member
Mr. Shahid Kamal Khan - Member
Mr. Shahnawaz Damji - Secretary
HR and Remuneration Committee Mr. Shahid Kamal Khan - Chairman
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak - Member
Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia - Member
Mr. Sohail Hameed - Member
Mr. Hassan Mahmood - Secretary
The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for compliance.
The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:
Audit Committee Four meetings
HR and Remuneration Committee Three meetings
The board has set up an effective internal audit function.
The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control review
program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Cversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and
minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.
The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed lo provide other services axcept in accordance with
the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines
in this regard.
We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.
———
Lt. Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

September 19, 2018
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Review Report on the Statement of
Compliance Contained in Listed
Companies Code of Corporate
Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the
Regulations) prepared by the Board of Direclors of Ghandhara Industries Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2018, in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether
the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not
and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's
parsonnel and review of various documeants prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems
sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required 1o consider whether the Board of Direclors’ statement
on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such intarnal controls, the Company's corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before
the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section
208 of the Companias Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirament to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committze. We have not carried out procedures to
assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions weng
undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately
reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Compary
for the year ended June 30, 2018,

Further, we highlight balow instance of non - compliance with the requiremeant of the regulations as reflected in the note reference where it is
stated in the Statement of Compliance.

5.No. MNote Description
Reference

(i 10 Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary are the same Person

Chindhoing Hetuneed Crnaudhe { o uy Send, hzen/
SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO. JUNAIDY SHOAIB ASAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
KARACHI; KARACHI;

Dated: September 19, 2018

Report on the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Ghandhara Industries Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the staterment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position,
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give
tha information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively giva a true and fair view
of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibiliies
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiliies for the Audit of the Financial Statermants section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Intermational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion therecn, and wa do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key Audit Matters:

S.No.
1.

Key Audit Matters

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
and changes in 4th Schedule

The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act, 2017) promulgated
on May 30, 2017. The Act, 2017 revised and replaced
the Fourth Schedule of the Companles Ordinance,
1984 and brought changes in the presentation and
disclosures of the financial statements by elimination of
duplicative  disclosures  with  IFRS  disclosure
requirements and incorporation of significant additional
disclosures. These changes are applicable first time o
the Company's financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2018.

The changes are considered as a key audil matler in
view of the extensive impacts on the financial
statements of the Company.

Reler note 2, B, 7, 11, 14.3, 22,1, 304, 33.1 36.2, 48,
47 and 48 for changes in disclosuras made through the
Act, 2017.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures in respect of this area
included:

Obtained an undarstanding of the related
provisions and schedules of the Act, 2017
applicable to the Company and prepared
document to assess the Company's
compliance with the disclosure requiremants of
the Act, 2017,

We discussed the applicable ghanges with the
Company's managemant and those charged
with governance as to whether the Company s
in compliance with such changes; We also
maintained a high level of vigilance when
carrying out our other audil procedures for
indication of non-compliance; and

We ensured that the financial staterments have
been prepared in accordance with the
approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan and the Act, 2017.
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Key Audit Matters
Stock-in-trade

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Qur audit proceduras in respect of this area included:

The Company's stock-in-trade has been increased significantly
from Rs.3,779.30 million at June 30, 2017, to Rs.6,888.22 million
at June 30, 2018. During the current financial year, the
management increased the stock levels of the Company due to
increase in business activity and launch of new product. Wa
identified this area as key audit matter because stock-in-trade
constitutes 57.24% of the total assets of the Company as at Juna
30, 2018. Refer note 2 and 13 of the financial statements.

Observation of physical inventory count procedures and
compared on a sample basis, physical count with
valuations sheets; Compared on a sample basis specific
purchases and directly attributable cost with underlying
supporting documents; Compared the NAV, on a sample
basis, to the cost of finished goods to assess whether any
adjustments are required to value stocks in accordance
with applicable accounting and reporting standards; and
We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures
made in the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprisas the information included in the Annual Report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
therson. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing sa,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, basaed on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial staterments in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statemenis that are free from matarial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless managesment
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Board of directors are
responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due lo lraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fravd or error and are considered material if, individually

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statemants.

As part of an audil in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audil procedures responsive lo those risks, and oblain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate o provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
arror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order lo design audit procedures thal are appropriate in the
clrcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by managemeant.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 8 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staternents, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe thesa matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

8) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the staterment of financial position, the staterment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the staterment of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purposa of the Company's business;
and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980}, was deducted by the Company and deposited
in tha Cantral Zakat Fund establizhed under section 7 of that Ordinanca.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report are Osman Hameed Chaudhri from ShineWing
Hameed Chaudhri & Co and Farrukh V. Junaidy from Junaidy Shoaib Asad.

Chrinehring Hetuneed Chandha { o Ay o, I
SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO. JUNAIDY SHOAIB ASAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
KARACHI; KARACHI;

Dated: September 18, 2018
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Statement of Financial Position Statement of Financial Position
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018 AS AT JUNE 30, 2018
Restated Restated Restated Restated
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016
Note weemees (Rupees in ‘000) —-— Note —eeeee (Rupees in ‘000) ~—--—
ASSETS EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
MNon current assets Share capital and reserves
Property. plant and equipment 7 2,463,605 2,021,453 1,841,250 Share capital 19 213,044 213,044 213,044
Intangible asseats 8 384 462 - Revenue reserve
Investment property 9 88,657 88,901 89,145 Unappropriated profit 2,651,0M 1,612,010 1,022 517
Long term investment 10 1,400 1,400 1,400 Capital reserve
Long term loans H 4,305 2,736 2,208 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 20 1,860,014 1,865,114 1,872,892
Long term deposits 12 11,537 12,688 12,085 Total equity 4,724,129 3,690,168 3,108,553
Deferred taxation 24 845 21,134 - Mon current liabilities
2,570,733 2,148,774 2,046,178 Liabilities against assets subject to 21 34,526 19,563 35,999
Current assets finance leace
Compensated absences 22 10,844 6,073 6,408
Stores 10,281 2,560 1,880 Deferrad liabilities 23 80,181 45,615 av.Boz2
Stock-in-trade 13 6,888,220 3,779,300 1,623,753 Deferrad taxation 24 B - 21,885
Trade debts 14 85,230 485 472 259,680 125,551 71,251 132,105
Loans and advances 15 168,661 143,340 142 348 Current liabilities
Trade deposits and prepaymeanis 16 721,213 707,242 338,626
Other receivables 17 T4 2,683 18,518 Trade and other payables 25 3,427,060 3,860,103 1,674,223
Sales tax refundable [ adjustable 606,558 481,756 30,484 Unpaid dividends 44,271 24,604 11,493
Taxation - paymants lass provision 475,310 38,542 111,896 Linclaimad dividends 24.814 14,092 53739
Cash and bank balances 18 497,261 805,135 585,735 Accrued mark-up [ interest 26 48,309 24,284 25,813
8,463,476 6,446,030 3,114,021 Short term boarmowings 27 3,631,851 92 386 194,029
Current maturity of liahililies against assats
Total assets 12,034,209 8.594 804 5,160,199 subject to finance lease 21 8,224 17,918 8,508
7,184,529 4,833 385 1,919,541
Total liabilities 7,310,080 4,904 636 2,051,646
Contingencies and commitments 28
Total equity and liabilities 12,034,209 8,594 804 5,160,199

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial slatements.

o o) PN -l 2 AN

Ahmad Kull Khan Khattak Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia iftikhar Ahmed Khan Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia iftikhar Ahmed Khan
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Chiafl Exacutive Diractor Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss Account & Other

Comprehensive Income

For the year ended June 30, 2018

Salas

Cost of zalas

Gross profit

Distribution cost

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Other income

Profit from operations

Finance cost

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income
tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of staff retirement
benefit obligation

Impact of deferred tax

Effect of change in tax rates on balance
of revaluation of fixed assets
Other comprehensive loes for the year - net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ol D 5%

2018 2017
Note e (Rupees in ‘000) ~——

29 16,772,383 10,740,631
30 (13,661,379) (8.537.668)
3,111,004 2,202,963
31 (584,046) (359,159)
32 (346,542) (150,595)
a3 (148,748) (244,074)
34 154,796 22,127
2,186,484 1,471,262
as (222,394) (224,837)
1,964,070 1,246,625
36 (601,850) (450,612)
1,362,420 796,013
(16,676) {1,934)
4 836 580
(11,840) {1,354)
2,947 i
(8,893) (1,354)
1,353,527 794,659

—— (Rupees) —
ay 63.95 4736

G\

Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak
Chiel Execulive

Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia

Director

Iftikhar Ahmed Khan
Chiel Financial Officer

Statement of Changes
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Balance as at July 1, 2018 - as previously staled
Effect of restatement - nole 8
Balance as at July 1, 2018 - as restated

Transaction with owners,
recognised directly in equity

Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2016
at the rate of Rs.10 per share

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehansive loss

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net of deferred taxation

Balance as at June 30, 2017

Transaction with owners,
recognised directly in equity

Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2017
at the rate of Rs.15 per share

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2018
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss) [ income

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net of deferred taxation

Balance as at June 30, 2018

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Capital
sh gg:’;:g Reserve
ital Unappro-  CURISON  Total
eape oo of fixed
profit assets
—eeeereee—e— [Rupees in '000) --—-——-—-
213,044 1,022,517 - 1,235,561
- - 1,872,992 1,872,992
213,044 1,022 517 1,872 992 3,108,553
" (213,044) - (213,044)
E 796,013 - 796,013
- {1,354) - {1,354)
- 794 659 - 794 659
- 7,878 (7.878) -
213,044 1,612,010 1,865,114 3,690,168
- (319,566) - {319,566)
- 1,362,420 - 1,362,420
(11,840) 2,947 (8,893)
- 1,350,580 2,947 1,353,527
8,047 (8.047) %

213,044

2,651,071

1,860,014

4,724,128

—_—

Al

A

Ahmad Kull Khan Khattak
Chief Executive

Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia

Director

Iftikhar Ahmed Khan
Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash (used in) [ generated from operations
Gratuity paid

Finance cost paid

Income tax paid

Long term loans - net

Long term deposits - net

MNet cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capilal expenditure

Purchasa of intangible asset

Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Liabilitics against asscts subject to finance lease - net
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

MNet decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A 2,

Note

38

39

2018

2007

e (Rupees in ‘000) ~—

(1,162,679) 613,046
(2,893) (4,831)
(196,152) (223,021)
(1,010,343) (449,707)
(1,569) (438)
1,151 (603)
(2,372,485) (65,554)
(493,314) (114,442)

s (622)

19,011 1,123
2,672 3,880
(471,631) (110,061)
(14,046) (12,122)
(289,177) (191,220)
(303,223) (203,342)
(3,147,339) (378,957)
12,749 391,706
(3,134,590) 12,749

AN

Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Maj. (R) Muhammad Zia
Chief Executive Director

Iftikhar Ahmed Khan
Chief Financial Officer

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended June 30, 2018

1.

3.1

3.2

3.3

334

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ghandhara Industries Limited (the Company) was incorporated on February 23, 1963, The Company’s shares are quoted
on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity is the assembly, progressive manufacturing and sale of lsuzu
trucks, buses and pick ups. The registered office of the Company is at F-3, Hub Chowki Road, S.1.T.E, Karachi. The
manuiacturing facilities of the Company are located at S1.T.E., Karachi with branches at Lahore, Multan, Rawalpindi and
Peshawar.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS

Stock-in-trade

During the year, the stock-in-trade has increased by 83% to Rs.6.9 billion as at June 20, 2018, This is due to the increase
in business activities by 56%, when compared with the previous year. The increase in stock-in-trade is also due to the
planned introduction of new pick-up trucks “1ISUZL DMAX".

Sales mix

During the year, the Company has achieved sales revenue of Rs.16.2 billion. This is the highest sales level ever achieved
by the Company. A shift in the salas mix was noted during the year, due to the increase in sales of medium duty trucks,
as compared o the reliance on sales of small duty trucks, in the previous year.

Companies Act, 2017

Due to applicability of the Companies Act, 2017, the amounts reported for equity for the previous years have been
restated. Refer note 6 for detailed information.

For detail performance review of the Company, refer Directors’ Report.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

Thesa financial statermants have been praparad in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:

- International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRS) issuad by the Intarnational Accounting Standards Board
{IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Praovision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provision of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the functional currency of the Company and figures
are rounded off 1o the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise specified.

New and amended standards and interpretations

Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year

Mew and amended standards mandalary for the first lime for the financial year beginning July 1, 2017:

{a) Amendments to IAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows' are applicable for annual pericds baginning on or after January 1,

2017. The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements o evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.
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3.3.2

(b) Amendment lo IAS 12, ‘Income laxes' is applicable on annual periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2017. The
amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions regarding determination
of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax.

{c) The Companies Act. 2017, promulgated last year, is applicable on the presentation of the financial statements for the
current year, The Companies Act, 2017 has also revised the 4th Schedule to the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and
brought changes in the presentation and disclosures of financial staterment of the listed companies. These changes
are applicable on tha financial staterments for the year ended June 30, 2018,

The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards that are mandatory for the financial year
beginning on July 1, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's
financial reporting and cperations.

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Company

Tha following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year
beginning on July 1, 2017 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

(a) IFRS 9, 'Financial instrumants’ is applicable in Pakistan on accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018,
IASE has published the complete version of IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’, which replaces the guidance in 1AS 39,
This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it
alsa includes an expecled cradil losses model thal replaces the incurred loss impairment model currently being
used, The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company's financial statements.

{b) IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers' is applicable on accounting periods beginning on or after July
1, 2018. The IASE has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers
contracts for goods and services and |AS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on
the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer - so the notion of
control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard permits a modified retrospective approach
for the adoption. Under this approach enlities will recognise transilional adjustments in retained earnings on the date
of initial application (e.g. July 1, 2018), i.e. without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the
new rules to contracts that are not completed as of the date of initial application. The Company has yet to assess the
full impact of this standard on ils financial slatements.

{c) IFRS 16, 'Leases’ is applicable on accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. IFRS 16 will affect
primarily the accounling by lessees and will resull in the recognilion of almost all leases on slalement of financial
position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases and requires
recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for virtually all lease
contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. The accounting by lessors will not
significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new guidance on the definition of a lease. Under
IFRS 16, a contract is, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Company's
financial statements.

{d} Amendment to IAS 12 'Income taxes' as part of annual improverment 2015-2017 cycle is applicable on accounting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. The amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of
dividends (including payments on financial instruments classified as equily) are recognised consistently with the
transactions that generated the distributable profits - i.e. in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity. The
amendment is not likely to have material impact on the Company's financial statements.

{8) Amendrments to |AS 23 'Borrowing Costs' as part of annual improvement 2015-2017 cycle is applicable on accounting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. The amendments clarify that the general borrowings pool used to
calculate eligible borrowing costs excludes only borrowings that specifically finance gualifying assets that are still
under development or construction. Borrowings that were intended to specifically finance qualifying assets that
arg now ready for their inlended use or sale - or any non qualifying assels - are included in that genaral poal.
This amendment will be applied prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date an entity adopts the
amendments. The amendments are not likely to have material impact on the Company's financial statements.
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(f) Amendment to |AS 40 ‘Invesiment Properly' - effeclive for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The
amendment clarifies that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, Investment property when and only when there
is an actual change in use i.e. an asset meets, or ceases to meet the definition of investment property and there is
evidence of change in use. A change in management intension alone does not support a transfer. The amendments
does not expect 1o have a material impact on the Company’s financial staterments.

{g) IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ is applicable for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018. The interpretation clarities which date should be used for translation when a foraign
currency transaction involves an advance payment or receipt. The related ilem is translated using the exchange
rate on the date that the advance foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income
recognisad. The amendments does not expect to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

{h} IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment’ is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
20189, The amendment clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatment
under 1AS12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of
current and deferred tax. The amendments does not expect to have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statemants.

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet
effective and are also not relevant to the Company and, therefore, have not been presented here.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for cartain classes of
property, plant and equipment which have been included at revalued amounts and staff retirement benefit which has
bean recognised at present value as determined by the Actuary

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make
judgemanis, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimales and underlying assumplions are reviewsd on an on-going basis. Hevisions o accounling estimales are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future perieds affectad.

The areas where various assumplions and estimales are significant o the Company's financial stalements or where
judgement was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

(i} Estimale of residual values and useful lives of depreciable and inlangible assels (note 5.1 and 5.2)
(i) Provision for taxation (note 5.9)

{iii) Prowvision for staff retirement banefit - gratuity (note 5.12)

(iv) Provisions (note 5.19)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise slated.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land is stated at revalued amount and buildings on leasehold land are stated at revalued amount less
accumulated depraciation and impairment loss (if any). Other classes of operating fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (if any). Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss (if
any). All expendilure connected to the specific assets incurred during the installation and construction period are carried
under capital work-in-progress. Thesae ara transferred to specific assets as and when the assels are available for use.

Plant and machinery were revalued in the year 1985 by independent valuers, and were presented at their revalued
amount. The Company subsaquently adopted the cost modeal for plant and machinery, and the revalugd amounts were
treated as deemed costs. The surplus on revaluation of these assets, however, were recognised in accordance with
section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 applicable at that time.
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5.3

5.8.1

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured rellably. All repairs and maintenances are charged to the profit or loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation on all operating fixed assets is charged using the straight line method in accordance with the rates specified
in note 7.1 to these financial statements and after faking into account their residual values. The depreciation method,
residual values and useful lives of iterms of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically and allered if
circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change is accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate by changing depreciation charge for the currant and future periods.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the assets become available for use, while on disposals
depreciation is charged upto the month of disposal.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying amounts of the assets and ara included in the profit or loss,

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially
from their fair value. Any surplus on revaluation of fixed assels is recognised in other comprehensive income and
presented as a separate component of equity as "Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets”, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
iz credited 1o profit or loss o the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amaunt arising
on the revaluation of fixed assets is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the
revaluation surplus on fixed assets relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. Each year, the incremental depreciation
charged on the revalued assets (net of deferred taxation) is reclassified from surplus on revaluation of fixed assels 1o
unappropriated profit. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders.

The Company assesses al each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment may be
impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed 1o assess whether they are recorded
in excass of their recovarable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respeclive recoverable amount, assels ara
written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is taken to profit or loss except for impairment
loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against related revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairmeant loss does
not exceed the surplus on revaluation of thal asset.

Intangible assets - computer software

Computer software licenses acquired by the Company are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Cost represents
the cost incurred to acquire the software licenses and bringing them to use. The cost of computer software is amortized
over the estimaled useful life i.e. 5 years using straight-line method.

Costs associated with maintaining computear software ara charged to profit or loss as and whan incurrad.

Investments

Investment property

Properly held for capilal appreciation and rental yield, which iz not in use of the Company is classified as investiment
property. Investment property comprise of leasehold land and buildings.

Investment property are carried at cost or valuation (i.e. deemed cost) less accumulated amartization | depreciation and
impairment, if any,

Investment property were revalued in 1298 by independent valuers and showed at revalued amounts. The Company
subsequently adopted cost model for investments property and the revalued amounts were treated as deemed costs.
The surplus on revaluation of these assels, howaver was recognised in accordance with seclion 235 of the Companias
Ordinance, 1984 applicable at that time.

Leasehold land and buildings are armartized | deprecialed on straight ling method al the rates stated in note 9.
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Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and repairs are
capitalised.

Long term investment

Invesiment in Subsidiary Company is carried at cost less impairment, if any.

Long term deposits

These are slated at cost which represents the fair value of the consideration given.
Stores

These are valued at cost determined on a first-in-first-out basis. ltems in transit are stated at invoice valua plus other
charges thareon accumulated upta the reparting date.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores is determined based on management's estimate regarding their future
usakility.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except for goods in transit which are stated at invoice
values plus other charges thereon accumulated upto tha reporting date. Cost in relation to raw materials, components and
trading stock (except for parts and accessories included in trading stock which are valued on average basis) is arrived
at principally on first in first out basis. Cost of work In process and finished stocks including components include direct
wages and applicable manufacturing overheads.

Met realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost necessarily 1o be
incurred in order to make the sale.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade and other debts are carried at original invoice amount being the fair value, Provision is made against debts
considerad doubtful of recovery whereas debts considered irrecoverable are written off,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes of cash flow
staternent, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, cash with banks and short term borrowings under mark-
Lp arrangements.

Taxation

Current

Provision for current year's laxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any, and taxes paid under the presumptive tax regime,

Deferred

The Company accounts for defarred taxalion using the balance shest liability mathod on lemporary differences arsing
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liability
is recognised for taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
laxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused lax losses and lax credils can
be utilised.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is seltled, based on lhe tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporling
date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to other
comprehensive income [ equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income / equity.

Finance lease / Assets subject to finance lease

Leases thal transfer substantially all the risk and rewards incidental lo ownership of an assel are classified as finance
leases. Assets on finance lease are capitalised at the commencement of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of
leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments, each detarmined at the inception of the lease. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The finance cost is charged to statement of profit or loss and is Included under finance cost.

Compensated absences

Employeas’ entillernants to annual leaves are recognised when they accrue o employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees upto the reporting date.

Stalf retirement benefit - defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity schema. The scheme dafines the amounts of benafits that an employee
will receive on or after retirement subject to a minimum qualifying period of service under the scheme. The amount of
retirement benefit is usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. Provision for gratuity is made annually to cover obligation
under tha scheme in accordance with the acluarial recommandations. Latest actuarial valuation was conducted on June
30, 2018 on the basis of the projected unit credit method by an independent actuary.

The amounls arising as a resull of re-measurements are recognised in the stalement of financial position immediately,
with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost, if any, are
recognised immediately in income.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are measured at cost which is the fair value of consideration to be paid in future for goods and
services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured al the fair value of consideration received or recaivable, and represents amount receivable for goods
supplied, returns and sales tax. Revenue from sale of goods are recognised when goods are invoiced and delivered to
customers.,

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the interest rate applicable.
Borrowings and their cost

Borrowings are recarded at the proceeds received. Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the peariod in which
these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset,

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee using the exchange rates prevailing al the dates of

the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at the
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are taken to profit or loss,
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5.22

5.23

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument and derecognised when the Company loses control of contractual rights that comprise the
financial assels and in the case of linancial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the profit or loss for
the year. All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given
and received respeclively. These financial assels and liabilities are subseguently measured at fair value, amortised cosl
or cost as the case may be. The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in individual policy statement
associatad with each item.

Oft-setting of financial assets and liabllities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent an fulure events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counter party,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, itis
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
astimate can ba made of the amount of the obligation.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend and other appropriations to reserves are recognised in the period in which they are approved.
Impairment loss

The carrying amounis of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating
occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions for impairment losses. If any indications exist, the recoverable
amounts of such assets are estimated and impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the
profit or loss. Reversal of impairment Ioss is resiricted to the original cost of the assat.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EP3) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss after taxation attributable o ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighted average
numbrers of ardinary shares culstanding during the year.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On
the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

During the year, the Company changed its accounting policy for the surplus on revaluation of fixed assets, after enactment
of the Companies Act, 2017, which has not carriad forward requiremeant of disclosing the surplug on revaluation of fixed
assets as a separate item below equity. Accordingly, in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting
Standard - IAS 16, 'Property, plant and equipment’, surplus on revaluation of operating fixed aszets would now be
presented within equily. The new accounting policy is explained in nole 5.1.
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Cepreciation charge has been
allocated as follows:
2018 2017
Note —{Rupees in ‘000}—
Cost of goods manufactured 30.1 24,617 18,700
Distribution cost 3 3,783 3,481
Administrative expenses a2 20,589 13,823
48,969 36,084

Laasshold land and buildings on leasshold land of the Company had praviously been revaluad in Juns 2010 and Juna
2013. Those revaluation exercises resulted in net surplus of Rs.437.28 million and Rs.259.448 million respectively.
Leasshold land and buildings on lsasehold land of the Company were again revalued in June 2016 by Sadruddin
Associalas (Privala) Limiled {Approved valuers of Pakislan Banks' Associalion) on the basis of prasenl markal value and
depreciated market value (level 2 of fair value hierarchy). The different levels of falr value have been defined In IFRS 13
and are menticned in note 43.4.

The latest revaluation exercise resulted in a net surplus of Rs.218.20 million. At the time of latest revaluation, forced sale
value of the this land was Rs.1,467.08 million. Out of the revaluation surplus resulting from all the revaluations carried-out
to date, an amount of Rs.1,808.90 million {2017: Rs.1,818.15 million) remains un-depreciated as at June 30, 2018.

Leasehold land of the Company ia located at 5.1.T.E. Karachi with an area of 18.93 acres.

Had tha operating fixed asseats baan racognised under the cost modeal, the carrying amount of buillding on lsasahold land
would have been Rs.20.99 million (2017: Rs.4.12 million).

Operating fixed assets includes certain plant and machinery, permanent tools and jige & special tools with cost
aggregating As.65.91 millicn (2017: Rs.42.09 million) and net book value of Rs.20.16 million (2017 Rs.0.067 million) which
i held by Ghandhara Nissan Limited - a related party as these fixed assets are used for assembling of the Company's
products.

The details of operating fixed assets disposed off during the year are as follows:

Hat
Paurticulars of Sale (Loss) f Mode of
Cost Boak Particul of buyars:
sty d"gﬁ" Vaiug PTOCOOdS Gl dispossl s
Aupsan in ‘00D0

tam having book valua

mors than Ae. 500,000 ssch
Mator Vehlole 18,000 = 18000 17,00 (1,800) Sale and lease back Orix Modaraba
T Trving eyl valun

leas than Ra. 600,000 sach 5,408 5,118 283 1911 1,818 Varlous Varkous

June30,2018 24408 51186 19208 18011  (282)
Juné 30, 2017 286 2 81 14 1,123 1,108
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Capital work in progress

2018 2007
—{Rupees In ‘000)}—
Advancas mada for:

- Buildings on leasshold land 134,770 34 681
- Plant and machinery 103,150 38,786
- Jigs and spacial lools 176,764 -
- Vehicles 770 2,028
- Computar softwars 2,722 2722

418,176 78,228

Capital work in progress include itemns with aggregating Rs.279.83 million which are located at the plant of Ghandhara
MNigsan Limited - a related party. Once capitalized, the assats will be used for assembling of the Company's products.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2018 2017

Note  —={Rupees in ‘000)—
These represent computer software licenses.

Cost
At beginning of the year 2,130 1,508
Addition during the year - 622
At end of the year 2,130 2130
Accumulated amortlzation
At beginning of the year 1,668 1,508
Add: charge for the year 8.1 78 160
At end of the year 1,748 1,888
Net book value _ 384 @ 482
Annual rate of amoriization 20% 20%
Amertlzation charge has bean

allocated as follows:

Cost of goods manufactured 301
Administrative expenses 3z

160

ald .

160
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INVEETMENT PROPERTY
Bulldings on
Leasehold Leaschold  Total
land
——— Rupses In '000 ——
At July 1, 2016
Cost 97,392 418 97,808
Accumulated amortization / depreciation 8,259 404 8,663
Met book value 89,133 12 89,145
Year ended June 30, 2017
Opening net book value 89,133 12 89,145
Amortization / depreciation charge 243 1 244
Clasing net book value 88,880 11 801
At June 30, 2017
Cost 97,392 416 97.808
Accumulated amortization / depreciation 8,502 405 8,907
Met book value 880 11 901
Year ended June 30, 2018
Opening net book value 88,890 11 88,901
Amortization / depreciation charge 243 1 244
Clozing net book value 86,647 10 88,657
At June 30, 2018
Cost 97,392 418 97,808
Accumulated amortization / depreciation B, 745 406 9,151
Met book value 88,647 10 657
Amortlzation / depreclation rate - per annum 0.25% 2.5%

Amortization / depreciation charge for the year has been grouped under administrative expenses (note 32).

In the opinion of the directors, the market value of investment property at the reporting date has not changed materially
from last year.

LONG TERM INVESTMENT - at coat
2018 2017
—{Rupees In "000)}—

Subsidlary Company - Unquotad
Marghzar Induslrias (Privata) Limiled
140,000 (2017: 140,000) fully paid

ordinary shares of Rs.10 sach. 1,400 1,400
Equity hald: 70% (2017: 70%)
The Company has been granted an exemption under sectlon 228(7) of the Companies Act, 2017; hence provisions of
sub-saction 1 to § of saction 228 of the Companias Act, 2017 does not apply for the financial yaar ended Juna 30, 2018 in
relation to its Subsidiary Company.

Howevar, tha annual auditad financial stataments of Marghzar Industrias (Private) Limited are availabla for ingpaction at
Registered Office of the Company and are also avallable to the members on request without any cost,
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The financial highlights of the subsidiary company as of June 30, 2018, based on audited financial statements having
ungualified audit opinion are as follows:
208 2017
Note —Amount in Rupsea—
Summarised statement of financlal position

Mon current assets 283 am
Current assets 2,361,752 2,497,880
Total Assots 362,035 2,458,181

Share capital and reserves m
Currant liabilities 146,401 166,554
Total Equity and Liabllities 362,035 2,458,181

Summarised statemant of profit or loss

Revenue 357,835 363,273
Profit before tax 73,682 BB 704
{Loss) / Profit after tax {125,993) 61,200
LONG TERM LOANS - Securad,
considerad good
Loans due from:
Related parties - Key Management Personnel - 795
Other employees 7,635 4,178
11.1 7,635 4973
Less: amounts recoverable within one year and
grouped under current assets
Related parties - Key Management Parsonnel - 315
Other employees 3,330 1,922
15 3,330 2,237
4,305 2736

Interas! [rea loans have been provided lo employesas under their lerms of employmenl. Thase are rapayabla in monthly
Instalments over a period of one to five years. These are secured against their respective vested retirement benafit.

Maximum aggregate amount of loans due from key management personnel at the end of any month during the year was
Rs.0.90 million {2017: Rs.1.252 million).

LONG TERM DEPOSITS - Considered good

2018 2017
—- Rupess In "000—
Deposit held with [ for:
- Leasing companiasg 8,055 10,256
- LHilities 937 837
- Cthers 1,545 1,495

11,637 12,688
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13 STOCK-IN-TRADE 15. LOANS AND ADVANCES - Unsecured
2018 2017
2018 2017 Note  — Rupees in'000 —
Raw materials and componants — Rupees In ‘000 —
- In hand 4420131 1,384,384 Consldered good
- In transit 366,619 574,443 Current portion of long term loans to employess 11 3,330 2,237
4 815,750 2,058,827 Letters of credit 2,752 3,097
Work-in-procass 109,209 138,686 Advancas dua from:
- employeas 15.1 6,315 5,602
Finished goods including componeants 1,584,755 1,409,943 - suppliers, contractors and dealers 167,264 132,504
Trading stocks 368,508 173,842 162,579 138,008
8,888,220 3,779,300 Considerad doubtiul
Advance to suppliers 3,275 4150
131 Stock-in-trade includes stock of Rs.5,673.58 million (2017: Rs.2,398.72 million) held with third parties out of which stock Less: provision for doubtiul advances 3,275 4,150
of Re.5,225.86 million (2017: Rs.1,676.54 milllon) is held with Ghandhara Nissan Limlted (an Assoclated Company) for - -
» TRADE DEBTS - Unsacured - e 15.1 Advances are given to employees to meet business expenses and are settlad when expenses are incurred.
Note  — Rupees In ‘000 — 16. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
2018 2017
Considered good — Aupeas In ‘000 —
Government and semi-government agencies 8,974 66,654
Others 14.1 86,256 418,818 Tender deposits 307,808 216,920
85,230 485472 Margins against bank guarantees 403,574| | 398867
Consider doubtful - others 2,267 = Less: provision for doubtful margin deposit 330 330
BT 487 485472 403,244 398,537
Less: provision for doubtful debts 2,267 = Margin against letters of credit 5,827 83,522
___95230 485472 Prapayments 4,533 8,263
721,213 707,242
141 :;gludesﬂamumt REe.0.005 million (2017: Ae.0.031 million) dus from Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited {an Associated 17. OTHER RECEIVABLES - Unsecurad e
mipany).
, , , This amount is receivable from lsuzu Motors Limited, Japan (a related party) on account of commission / sales incentiva.
14.2 The ageing of trade debts at reporting date is as follows:
2018 2017 2018 2017 18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Assoclated Company . Othars 2018 2017
{Rupeas In 000} —8
Note  ~— Rupees In 000 —
Upto 30 days - = 56,112 287 987
EL& 11330 d:;f:s 5 31- ﬂ,ﬁ 1%3?3 Cash in hand 1,622 878
- 1 Cash with banks on;
% - current accounta 3g2.1: 300,917
14.3 The maximum aggregate amount of trade receivable from related parties at the end of any month during the year was -8aving accounts 16.] 115,638 S0
Rs.0.31 million (2017: Rs.0.001 million). - term deposit recelpt 18.2 *|| 470,000
- foreign currency accounts 18.3 42 42
487,872 B0G, 388
Less; provision for a doubiful bank account 18.4 2,233 2233
487,261 805,135
181 Saving accounts carry mark-up ranging from 2 46% to 2.61% (2017: 2. 46% to 4.25%) per annum.
18.2 Term deposit recelpt (TDR) had maturity of one week from date of acquisition. The TDR In 2017 carried mark-up ranging
from 5.75% to 6.1% per annum.
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183

18.4

19.

121

18.2

123

194

Foreign currency accounts include Japanese Yen {JPY) 31,559 equivalent to Rs.0.029 milion and US Dollars 126
equivalent to Rs.0.013 milllon (2017 JPY 31,559 equivalent to Rs.0.023 million and LS Dollars 126 equivalent to Rs.0.013
million).

This represents provision made against balances hald with Indus Bank Limited under liquidation.

SHARE CAPITAL
2018 2017
— Rupees In 000 —
Authorized capltal
50,000,000 (2017: 50,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 500, 500,000
Issued, subscribed and pald-up capital
2018 2017 2018 2017
= No. of aharea — -— Rupeea in ‘000 —
17,650,862 17,650,862 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 gach
fully paid in cash 178,508 176,509
358,206 358,206 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issuad for consideration other
than cash 3,582 3,582
3,295,354 3,285,354 Ordinary shares of Hs.10 sach
issued as fully paild bonus shares 32,953 32,853
21 A22 21304 422 213,044 213,044

At June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 Bibojes Services (Private) Limited, the ultimate Holding Company, held B,343,387
(2017: 8,343,397} ordinary shares of Rs.10 each.

Ordinary shares held by related parties other than the
ultimate Holding Company as at June 30,

2018 2017
— Mumber of shares —
Ghandhara Missan Limitad 4,066,168 5,188,168
Universal Ineurance Company Limitad 1,164,148 1,184,148
The Ganaral Tyre and Rubber Company of Pakistan Limitad 100,700 100,700
Bibojea Investmants (Privata) Limitad 21,408 21,408

5472424 6472,424

SURPLUE ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ABBETS
2018 27
— Rupses In "000 —
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,924,058 1,535314
Less: fransferred to unappropriated profit on account
of Incremental depreciation for the year 11,266 11.266
1,912,804 1,924,059

Less: related deferred tax of:

- opening balance 58,945 62,322
- incremental depreciation for the year {3,208) {3,377)
- effect of change in tax rate {2,947) -
- closing balance 52,790 58,945

Balance at end of the year 1,860,014 1,885,114

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

21.

21.1

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

The amount of futura minimum lease payments togathar with the presant value of the minimum leass payments and thea
pariods during which they fall due are as follows:

2018 2017
Financa Prasent Finance Present
Minlmum coat value of Minirnum cost value of
[ease allocated minimum lease allocated minimum
payments to furiure lease payments  to furture laase
perlod paymenis pariod paymants
Rupsaes In 000
Mot later than one year 10,874 2,650 8224 22,243 4,327 17.916
Later than one year but
not later than five years 37,352 2,826 34,526 26,979 7.416 19,563
Tatal minimum . s
lease payments 48.226 5478 42 750 49 222 11,743 37479

The Company has acquired motor vehicles under finance lease arrangesments from leasing companies and a modaraba.
The arrangamenls ars secured by lille of leased assels in the name of the lessor. Ranlalz are payabla in monthly
Instalments. Repair and Insurance cost are bome by the Company. The rates of financial charges applied, during the
year, ranged from B.78% to 17.27% (2017: 11.54% to 17.00%) per annum. At the and of the lsase term, the ownership of
the assets shall be transferred to the Company against the security deposite paid.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES
2018 2017

Note — HRupees In ‘000 —
Balance at beginning of the year 5,073 6,408
Provision for the year 5,204 558

11,367 6,967

Encashed during the year (523) {B94)
Balance at end of the year 221 _ 10844 2 6073

Includes liability in respect of key management personnel aggragating to Rs.3.52 million (2017: Rs.1.58 million).

DEFERRED LIABILITIES
2018 2017
Note  — RAupees in '000 —
Galn on sale and lease back of fixed assats 231 555 1,023
Staff ratiremant benefil - gratuity 232 79,828 44,592

80,181 45,815

Gain on sale and lease back of fixed asaeia

Balance at baginning of the year 1,023 1,633
Less: amortization for the year 488 610
Balanca at and of the yaar 565 1,023

The Company entered into sale and leaseback transaction during the precseding years which resulted in finance leases.
The excess of sale proceeds aver the net book value of motar vehicle under sale and leaseback arrangement has been

recognised as deferred income and amortized over the period of the |sase tarm.
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232

2221

2322

2323

2324

23.2.5

2328

Staff retirement benefit - gratuity
The Company's cbligation as per tha latest actuarial valuation in raspect of defined bansfit gratuity plan is as follows:

Movement In the account of llabliity

2018 2017
w— Aupeas In ‘000 —
Liability at beginning of the year 44,592 36,169
Charge for the year 21,251 11,320

Re-measuremant recognised in
other comprehensive Income 16,676 1,934
Payments during the year {2,893} {4,831}

Liability at end of the year 78,828 44,582
Movement In the present value of defined
banafil obligation

Balance at beginning of the year 44 592 38,169
Currant sarvice cost 17,368 8.281
Interest cost 3,883 3,039
Re-measurement 18,678 1,934
Benefits paid (2,893) {4.831)
Balance at end of the year 79,626 44 532
Expensa recognised In statament of profit or loas

Current service cost 17,388 8,281
Intarast cost 3,883 3,039

21251 11320

As-measuramant recognissad In
other comprahensive Incoma

Experience adjustments 16,676 1,834
Actuarial assumptions used
2018 2017
— % par annum —
Discount rate 8.00 8.00
Expocted rate of increase in future salaries 8.00 8.00
Mortality rates (for death in service) sSuC SLIC

2001-20056 2001-2005
Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changss in principal assumptions is
impact on define benefit obligation

Change In Increase in Decrease In
assumption assumpllon assumptlon
—— Rupess In '000 —

Discount rate 1.00% 71,638 89,047
Increase in future salaries 1.00% 89047 71,501

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

23.2.7
23.2.8

23.2.8

23.2.10

The senasitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumpticns constant. In practice,
this Is unlikely to ocour, and change In some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of
the defined bensfit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (prasent value of defined bansfit
obligation calculated with the project unit credit method at the end of reporting period) has been applied as when
calculating the gratuity liability recognised within the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change comparad to the previous
period.

Basad on actuary's advice, the expected charge for the year ending June 30, 2018 amounts to Rs.24.86 million.
The weighted average duration of the scheme is 10 years.

Historical information

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Rupees In ‘000
Present value of defined
benefit abligation 79 44,592 36,189 30,545 24 825
Experiance adjustmant Bbfe  1&34 521 0 474 2 2144
Expected maturity analysis of undiscounied retirement benefit plan:
Less than ‘ Between | Between Over | | Total
8 year 1-2years || 2-5 years S years
Rupees In ‘000
At June 30, 2018 7 4 1
DEFERRED TAXATION - Net
2018 2017
— Rupees in ‘000 —
Thiz is composed of following:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowance 4,665 5,007
- gurplus on revaluation of fixed assets 52,790 58,045
- lighilities against assets subject to finance lease {1,588) (1,582)
- gain on sale and lease back of fixed assets (181) (307)
- provision for gratuity (22603) {13.378)
- provigion for workers profit paricipation fund (30,497) {B6,060)
- provision for doubtiul balances {1,664) (2,014)
- others {1,687) {1,745}
(845)  {21,134)
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25.

25.1

25.2

25.4

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors

Accrued liabilities

Advances from customers

Advance against sale of investment In
immovable property

Payable to trustees’ provident fund

Royalty payable

Retention money

Withholding tax

Due to related parties

Due to the Subsidiary Company

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Worker welfare fund

Others

MNote

25.2

253
254

These represent advances from customers against sale of trucks and carry no mark-up.

Dus to related parties

Ghandhara Nissan Limitad
The General Tyre & Rubber

Company of Pakistan Limited
Rahman Cotton Mills Limited
Gammen Pakistan Limited
Wagf-a-Kuli Khan

Workers' proflt particlpation fund

Balance at beginning of the year

Add: alloeation for tha yaar

Add: interest on funds utilised in the
Company's business

Lass: paymeants made during the year
Balance at end of the year

Workers' weltare fund

Balance at baginning of tha year
Add: chargs for the year

Less: pald during the vear
Balance at and of tha yaar

2018 2017
— Rupess In ‘000 —

501,650 345,281

182,883 129,654
2408,838 3,117,979

5,000 5,000

178 178
23,180 16,217
20 20

53,885 20,080
105,254 64,600
2,582 2,458
105,162 220,199
34,007 30,466
6,724 3,931
3,427,060 3.960,103

2018 2017
— Rupees In ‘000 —

80,788 28,578

6,833 29,953

1,800 =
5 250
5818 5818

105,254 84,800

220,199 =
105,162 179,423

15,027 40,776
340,388 220,199
235,226 =
105,162 220,188

30,466 20,407
34,007 30,486
30,466 29,407
34,007 30,466

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

28.

27,

2r.2

273

ACCRUED MARK-UP / INTEREST
2018 2017
Note —{Rupess in"000)}—
Mark-up / Interest acerued on:

- ghort tarm borrowings - securad 43,795 18,770
- leng term loans - unsacurad 4,514 4514
48,308 24,284

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured

Finance against imported merchandise 271 2,548,948 168,511
Istisna 27.2 77,654 -
Murabaha 2r.2 524,659 623,875
Running finance / Musharakah 274 480,689

3,631,861 792,386

The Company has arranged facilities aggregating Rs. 10,950 million (2017: Rs.6,500 million) for opening of letters of credit
frorm banks. These facilities are sacured against cash margin and congignment of import documants in bank's favour.
Finance against import merchandise (FIM) aggragating Rs.7,750 million {2017: Rs.4,000 million) are also available as
sub-limit of abovementioned facilities. FIM is sacured against pladge of goods. Mark-up on FIM is payable on quarterly
basiz at rata ranging from 3 months KIBOR plus 0.6% per annum to 3 months KIBOR plus 1% (2017: at rate ranging from
3 months KIBOR plus 1% per annum o 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5%). Profit on import Murabaha is payable on 120 days
basis at the rate ranging from matching KIBOR plus 0.5% to 1.0% per annum {2017: at the rate ranging from matching
KIBOR plug 1% to 1.95 per annum). These facilities are maturing on various dates latest by May 31, 2019,

The Istisna facility of Re.750 million {2017: As.1,000 million} with a tenor of 180 days (2017: 365 days) and Murabaha
facility of Rs.3,700 million (2017: Rs.2,000 million} are available from Banks. Profit on both facilities ranges from KIBOR
{matching) plus 0.5% 1o 1.0% (2017: KIBOR (matching) plus 0.9% to 1.95%) and is payable along with the repayment of
principal. These facilities are secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge on current assets of Rs. 3,600 million
{2017: Rs. 2,667 million). The facilities are available upto May 31, 2019,

The Company hag foraign [ inland bills digcounting lacilily of Rz. 150 million (2017: Rs.150 million). The facilily is securad
against lien over accepted bills under LCs. The facliity has a maximum tenor of 180 days on roll over basls. The facllity
has one year validity on roll over basie and is due for renewal on November 30, 2018,

The Company has facilities for short-term running finance amounting Rs.1,000 millien (2017: Rs.450 milllon) from banks.
Mark-up iz based on rates ranging from 3 month KIBOR plus 0.5% to 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum (2017: 3
months KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum) payable on quarterly basis. The faciliies are primarily secured against first pari
passu charge by way of hypothecation over stocks and book debts aggregating Rs.1,333.34 million (2017: Rs.600
million}. These facility is collateralized against equitable mortgage over land and buildings for an amount of Rs.300 million
{2017: Ra.300 million). The facility has one year validity on roll over basis and is due for renewal on November 30, 2018.

The facility for bank guarantess of Az 8,100 million including sublimit of Rg.800 million of unning finance (2017: Rs.4,154
million including sublimit of Re.400 million of running finance) is also available from banks. These facilities are secured
against cash margin and equitabls mortgagse ovaer immovable assets of the Company to an extent of Rs 6,833 million
{2017: R=.1,100 million). The facilities shall be available latest by May 31, 2019,
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(i} Suit against the Company by the supplier for the recovery of Rs.25.87 million as compensation for breach of
agreement. The suil is being defended by tha Company on a number of lagal grounds. The suit iz at presant in

evidence stage and the Company has plausible defance.

{ii} Various demands have been raized by the Central Excise and Sales Tax Depariments aggregating Rs.4.90 million.
The Company flled Sales Tax Reference in High Court of Sindh against the order of Customs, Excise and Sales
Tax Appellate Tribunal (the Tribunal). Thae Sales Tax Reference had been decided vide order dated January 21,
2009 wherein the High Court of Sindh has set aside the order of the Tribunal and remanded back the case to the
Tribunal to pass order In accordance with law. The Tribunal through order dated October 9, 2015, disposed off the
matter by remanding the case to Assessing officer. No provision has been made in thesa financial statements as the

managemant believes that it will have a favourable decision.

282 Commitmants

Bank guarantess
Letters of credit

29. SALES - Net

Manufaotured goods
Gross sales

- local

- gxpon

Less: salas tax

Trading goods

Gross salas - local
Lass: sales tax

30, COST OF SALES
Manufactured goods

Stocks at baginning of year
Cost of goods manufacturad

Stocks at end of year

Trading goods

Stocks at beginning of year

Purchases

Stocks at end of year

2018 2017
=—={Rupees In ‘000}—

3,4868474 3480718

25666638 2076843
2018 2017

Note —{Rupees In '000)}—

\ 19,511,088 ‘ 12,470,400

10,622

18,521,711 12,470,400

2,809.440 1,804,330
16,7112271 10,666,070

71,662 ‘ 88,766

11,450 14,206

60,112 74,561
16,772,383 10,740,631

1,408,843 293,420

301 13,808,514 9,455,904
15,216,467 9,848,324
(1,694,755) (1.409,943)
13,621,702 8,439,381

173,842 77,683

234,341 194,546

408,183 272129
(368,606) (173.842)
30,677 98,287
13,681,379 B 537,668

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2018

30.1

Coat of gooda manufactured

Raw materials and components consumead

Stores conaurmed

Salaries, wages and other bensfits
Fuel and power

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Research and development
Repair and maintenance
Travelling and entertainmeant
Vehicle running and maintenance
Printing, stationery and office supplies
Communication

Royalty expense

Outside assembly charges
Depreciation

Amortization of Intangible assets
Freight and handling

Other expanses

Work-in-process adjustment

Feaw materlals and componants consumed

Stocks at beginning of year

Add : purchases including duties, taxes and other charges

Stocks at end of year

2018 207
Note —{Rupess in "000)}—
302 12,817,611 8,799,206
71,810 21,248
303 252,137 248,019

18,861 19,835
4,023 2,615
7,438 4,207

10,843 811

58,832 27,218
13,862 10,346

836 1,148

279 683

225 127

30.4 28,060 28,602
853,610 380,340

7.2 24,617 18,700
B.1 = 160
5,029 1,640

83 150

13,779,036 5,665,162
27,478  (109,248)
13,806,514 5455 504

2,088,827 1,125310
15,374,434 B, 732723
17,433,281 10,856,033
(4,815,750) (2,058 ,827)
12617511 B 790 208

Salaries, wages and other benefits Include Rs.4.38 million {2017: Rs.4.36 milllon) in respect of staff retirement benefit -

gratuity.

Royalty charged In these financial statement pertalns to Isuzu Motors Limited, Japan having registered office at 6-26-1

Minami-Oi, Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo 140-8722 Japan.
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3. DISTRIBUTION COST

Naote

Salaries and benefits 311
Commission

Rent, rates and taxes

Insuranca

Repalr and maintenance

Litilitie=

Travelling and entertainment

Vehicle running and maintenance

Printing, atationery and office supplies

Communication

After sale scrnvices

Adverlisement

Legal and professional charges

Late delivery charges

Depreciation 7.2
Freight forwarding and handling

Other expenscs

A Salaries and benefits Include Rs.5.19 million (2017: Re.3.76 milllon) in respect of staff retirement benefit - gratuity.

32, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2018 2017
—{Rupeas In "000}—
108,288 77,082
288,347 186,154
4,052 4,008
4,979 4407
224 1,675
248 281
18,122 13,244
1,372 1,403
4177 3,247
1,055 800
18,019 4822
32 3687 11,103
832 1,818
25,432 8,575
3,763 3481
50,573 34,515
9,146 1,786
584,046 359,169

2018 2017

Note  —{Rupsess In ‘000}—

Salaries and benefits 32.1
Staff tralning and anclllary cost

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Repalr and maintenance

Utilities

Travelling and entertainment

Vehicle running and maintenance
Printing, stationery and office supplies
Communication

Legal and professional charges

Fee and subscriptions

Depraciation 7.2
Amortization of Intanglble assets 8.1
Amortization / depreciation of investrment property 9.1
Security expenses

Other expenses

201,328
2,701
5115

10,230
48,679
505
24,17
3,029
7,058
1,855
4,214
5918
20,589
78
244
7,135
2,869

47,744
2,212
5,21
2,761

42,268
2,867

16,035
2,183
4,894

888
3,070
1,342

13,223

244
4,578

275

346,642 150,595

321 Salaries and benefits include Rs.11.688 million {(2017: Re.3.20 million) in respect of staff retirement benefit - gratuity.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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33. OTHER EXPENSES

Auditors' remuneration
- audit fec
- certification charges
- out of pocket expenses

Workers' profits participation fund

Workers' welfare fund

Donation and charities

Exchange loss - net

Balances written-off

Provision for doubtful debts

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

2018

Annual Report 2018 9 8

2m7

Note —{Rupess in '000)}—

1,000 1,000

113 45

25 25

1,138 1,070

253 105,162 179,423
254 34,007 30,466
a3.1 3,819 1,391
- 3,724

1,873 =

14 2,267 -
282 -

148,748 244 074

—_—

a3.1 Include donation amounting Rs.1.80 million and R3.0.70 million made to Ayesha Chundrigar Foundation and Islamia
College Peshawar, raspactivaly. Nona of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the doness.

4. OTHER INCOME

Incoma from financial asseis
Profit on saving accounts and term deposit recelpts
Exchange gain - nat
Incoma from other than financlal asssts
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets
Commission
Amortization of gain on sale and lsags back
of fied assats
Rental incomea
Balances writlen back

35, FINANCE COST

Mark-up / interest on:
- laase finances
- finance against imporad merchandiss
- igtisna f running finances / murabaha
- loan from Subsidiary Compary
- workers' profit participation fund
Bank charges and others

2018

2017

Note —{Rupees in '000)}—

2,672 3,880
8,299 -
7.7 1,109
136,788 13,848
231 468 610
2,640 2,880
949 E
154,796 22127
2018 2007

Mote —{Rupeeas In '000)—

2217 3,145
161545 123638

15,474 34,530

358 363

253 15,027 40,776
27,773 22176

992,304 224,637
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35.2

3821

36.3
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TAXATION
2018 2017
Note  —{Rupess in "DO0}—
Current
- for the year 38.1 586,504 530,808
- for prior year {12,928) (7.745)
573,578 523,061
Deferred
- origination and reversal of temporary differences 25,230 (72,638)
- Impact of change In tax rate 2,842 189

28,072  (72,449)
601,650 450,612

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit for the current financial vear is as follows:
2018 2017
—{Rupeas In 000}—

Profit before taxation 1,864,070 1,246,625
Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2017: 31%) 580,221 386,454
Tax effect of items, which are not deductible for tax

purposes and are taken to profit or loss 69,098 93,845

Tax effect of items, which are deductible for tax

purposes but are not taken to profit or loss {101,690) {11,098)

Effect of tax cradits {7,743) {B894)
Tax effect of income subject of final tax regime {18,692) 15,363
Super tax 58,310 47,144
Charge of prior years' tax provision (12,9286) {7.745)
Deferred taxation 28,072 (72,449)

501650450612

Tha provision for current year tax repressent tax on taxable incoma at the rale of 30%. It also include provision for supertax
at 3% as required under section 48 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The management considers the tax provigion
made In the financial statements sufficient. A comparison of last three years of Income tax provislons with tax assessed Is
presented below:

2017 2016 2015

—{Rupses in ‘000)—
Income tax provision for the year - accounts 530,806 361121 46,322
Income tax as per tax assessment 471,877 322,300 41,561
Excess 58,929 38,821 4,761

Excess is mainly due to super tax provision recorded In respective years which have not become dus as the Company
hies filad petition in the High Court of Sindh against levy of supar tax.

Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 imposas tax at the rate of 7.5% on every public company other than a
schadulad bank or modaraba, that darives profits for tax a year but does not distributa 40% of accounting prafit either
through cash dividend or Issuance of bonus shares within six months of the end of sald tax year.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 19, 2018 has propsed fo distribute sufficient cash dividend
for the year ended June 30, 2018 (refer note 49) which complies with the above stated requirements. Accordingly, no
provision for tax on undistributed profits has been recognisad in these financial statements for the year ended Juna 30,
2018.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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ar.

ar.1

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
2018 2017
—{Rupees In '000)}—
1,382 420 796,013
— Number of shares —

Net profit for the year

Weighted average ordinary shares

outstanding during the year 21,304,422 21,304,422
Rupsas ——
Earnings per share 63.95 3736

A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company has not Issued any Instruments carrying options
which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2018 2017
Nota —{Aupsees In '000)}—

Profit before taxation 1,964,070 1.2468625
Adjustment for non cash charges and
other items:
Depreciation / amortization on:
- property, plant and equipment 48,988 36,084
- intangible assets 78 160
- investment property 244 244
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 282 {1,109)
Amortization of gain on sale and
lease back of fixed assat (468) (B10)
Exchange loss / (gain) - net (8,209) 31,724
Finance cost 222 304 224 837
Profit on saving accounts and term deposit receipts {2,672) {3,680)
Balances written-off 1,873 =
Provision for doubtiul debts 2,267 -
Provision for gratuity 1 .251 11,320
2,250,089 1,545,196
Working capital changes - net 381 (3412,768) (932,149)

(1,162,679) 613,046

Working capital changea
{Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores (7,721) (580)
Stock-in-trade (3,108.920) (2, 155547)
Loans and advances {27,294) (291)
Trade deposits and prepayments {13,871} (367,706)
Other receivables 10,241 (15,889)
Sales tax refundable / adjustable {124,803) (451,182)

(2,884,493) (3.217687)
{528,275) 2,285538

(3412,768) (932149)

{Decrease) [ increase in trade and other payables

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 18 497,261 805,135
Short term bomowings 27 (3,631,851) (792.38H)
3,134,580 12,748
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40.

40.1

40.2

41.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief executive Directors Executives
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Rupeas In '000
Managerial remunaration
and allowances 60,000 - E - 85,264 55,848
Bonus 35,000 - - - 48,005 14,045
Retiramant banafit 5,000 - - - 718 4,282
Others - - - - 2,755 2428
100 - - - 154,215 76,674
Mumbar of parsons T T S 2T O T

Certain employees are provided with free use of car maintained by the Company in accordance with their term of
employmant.

Agaregate amount charged In the financial statements for meeting fee to Directors was Rs.2.70 million (2017: Rs.1.27
million).

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties of the Company comprise of the Ultimate Holding Company, the Subsidiary Company, Associated
Companles ! undertaking, technological suppliers, directors and executives. The Company In the normal course of
business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties, amounts dus from
exacutives and remuneration of directors and executives are disclosed in the relevant notes. Other material transactions
with related parties are given below:

Name of related party and Nature of 2018 20$7
nature of relationship transactions — Rupees In ‘000 —
{) Ultlmate Holding Company
Bibojee Services (Private) Limited Dividend paid 125,151 B3,434
{I} Subsldlary Company
Marghzar Industries (Private) Limited Financial charges 358 363
Relmbursement of expenses 493 267
{lll) Associated Companles / Undertaking
The General Tyre and Rubber
Company of Pakistan Limited Purchase of tyres 338,238 273,090
{Common Directorship) Rental income - 450
Sale of parts 32 -
Sale of truck 1,975 -
Dividend paid 1,511 1,007
Ghandhara Migsan Limited Azsembly charges 784,724 444,998
{Common Directorship) Sales - fabrication - 676
Sales of parts 3,079 17
Purchase of fixed assets - 1,050
Purchase of parts ] 12
Rental Income 2,640 2,138
Re-imbursement of expenses 8,481 27 480

Dividend paid 77,483 51,662

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Universal Insurance Company Limited Dividend paid

(Commaon Diractorship)

Rahman Cotton Mills Limited Rent paid

(Common Diractarship)

Gammon Pakistan Limited Rent paid

{Common Diractorship) Re-imbursemeant of expansas
Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited Sales of parts

{Common Directorship)

Bibojee Investments (Private) Limited Dividend paid

(Common Directorship)

Janana Da Malucho Textile Mills Re-imbursement of expanses

Limited (Common Directarship)

Remuneration, bonus and
other benefits
Ratirament bansfit paid

(Iv) Key management parsonnel

42, PRODUCTION CAPACITY

Annual Report 2018 ]-02

17,762 11,842

1,800 1,800
2,000 3,000
B4 21

5 &

321 214
1,630 -

192,988 38,016
1,176 -

The production capacity of the plant cannot be determinad as this depands upon the mix of various product assembly of

trucks, buses and fabrication of commercial bodies.

The Company has oulsourced tha assembly of trucks and buses 1o Ghandhara Nigsan Limiled (an Associaled Company)

therefore figures for the actual production for the current year has not been given.
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43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

431  Financlal assets and liabliities by category and their respective maturities

interest / mark-up bearing Non Interest / mark-up bearing
Maturity  Maturity Sub- Maturity  Maturity Sub-
upto ona  after ona total up to one  after ona total Total
year year year year
Rupees In ‘000
Financlal assets as per
balance shest
Investments - at cost
Long term inveatment - - - - 1,400 1,400 1,400
Loans and recelvables
Loans and advances - - - 3,330 4,305 7,636 7,835
Deposits - - - 716,880 11,837 28,217 728,217
Trade debts - - - 85,230 - 85,230 95,230
Other recelvables - . - 741 - 741 TN
Cash and bank balances 115,639 - 115,639 381,822 - 381,822 497,261
June 30, 2018 115, - 115,639 1,197 17,242 1,214
June 30, 2017 605,430 . 506,430 1,489,076 16,824 1605900 2,011,330
Financlal liabliities as per
balance sheat
At amortised cost
Trade and other payables - - - 827,223 - 827,223 827,223
Accrued mark-up [ interest - - - 48,300 - 48,309 48,309
Short term borrowings 3631851 3631851 363185 - - - 3,831,851
Liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease 8.224 8,224 42,750 = = = 42,750
Juna 30,2018 _ 3 075 840 874,601 - 975 650,132
June 30, 2017 810,302 828 BES 855,631 = 855,631  1,685496
On Balance Shaet Gap
June 30, 2018 222,01 238,313

June 30, 2017 _ (304 872) (504.872) (324 436)

633,445 633,445 660,269 325,834

Off Balance Sheet

Letters of credit

Letters of guarantee
Juns 30, 2018
June 30, 2017

2,665,639
3,498,474
8,054,013

5,666,662

The effactive Interest / mark-up rates for the monetary financlal assets and llabilities are mentioned in respective notes to

the financial statements.

Annual Report 2018 ].m
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43.2

Financial risk factors

The Company's activilies expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest / mark-up rate risk). The Company's overall risk management program focuses on having
cost effective funding as well as manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to
shareholders.

{a) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised if counterparts failed to perform as contracted.
Credit risk mainly arises from loans & advances, deposits, trade debts, other receivables and bank balances. The
financial assets exposed to credit risk aggregate to Rs.1,327 .46 million (2017: Rs.2,008.95 million)

The Company believe that it is not materially exposed to credit risk as; (i) trade debts mainly represent receivables
from government, semi-government agencies and dealers, (i) deposits mainly include margin against letters of
credit and bank guarantees held with banks having good credit ratings and (iii) balances placed with banks having
good credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies.

The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposure, limiting transactions with specific
counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial cbligation as they fall due. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The Company aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines open.

The maturity profile of the Company's liabilities based on maturities is disclosed in note 43,1 of these financial
staternents.

{e) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises mainly when receivables and payables exist due 1o transactions based on currencies
other than Pak Rupee. At Jung 30, 2018, receivables and payables exposed to foreign exchange risk are B5.23.19
million (2017: A=.16.21 million) and Rs.0.032 million (2017: Rs.0.032 million) respectively. Tha liability and receivable
are denominated in Japanese Yen.

Al June 30, 2018 if Pak Rupee had weakened [ strengthensd by 15% against Japanase Yan with all othar variables
held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower [ higher by Rs.3.46 million (2017 Rs.2.58 million),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange loss [ gain on translation of Japanese Yen denominated financial assets and
hakilities.

The sensitivity of foreign exchange rate looks at the outstanding foreign exchange balances ot the Company as at
the reporting date. The volatility percentage for movement in foreign exchange rates has been used due 1o the fact
that historically (5 years) rate has moved on average basis by the mentioned percentage per annum.

Interest / mark-up rate risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the
miarket intarast / mark-up rates, At June 30, 2018, the Company's intarest bearing financial liabilities of Rs.3,674.70
million (2017: Rs.829.87 million) represent the short term borrowings at floating rate to manage the working capital
requirements of the Company and obligation under assets subject to finance lease. These liabilities are re-priced
at a maximum period of six manths. The effective mark-up rates for financial assets and labilites are mentioned in
respective notes to the financial statements.

Had the interest rales varied by 100 basis points with all the other variables held constant, profit before tax for the
year would have been approximately higher / lower by Rs.36.75 million (2017: Rs.8.2 million).
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The sensitivity of 100 basis points movement in the interest rates has been used as historically (five years) floating
interest rates have moved by an average of 100 basis per annum.

Price risk
The Company is not exposed to any price risk as it does not hold any investments exposed (o price risk.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to ransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company
is going concern and thare is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operation or to undertake a
transaction on adverse terms.

The estimated fair value of all financial assets and liabilities is considered not significantly different from book values as
the iterms are either short - term in nature or pericdically repriced,

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, ‘Financial Instruments : Disclosure’ requires the Company to classify
fair valug measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used In making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoled prices (unadjusted) in aclive markels for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1].
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) [Level 2]

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) [Level
3].

Currently there are no financial assets or financial liabilities which are measured at their fair valug in the statement of
financial position.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objeclives when managing capital are o safeguard the Company's ability lo continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital

The Company manages its capital structure by monitaring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions. In ordar to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders and / or issue new shares. There was no change to the Company's approach to capital
management during the year.

OPERATING SEGMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

{a) All non-current assets of the Company at June 30, 2018 are located in Pakistan.

(b} Exportsales are made to Republic of Mauritius. Result of the Company’s revenue from external customers in Pakistan
is As.16,761.76 million (2017: Rs. 10,740.63 million) and total revenue from external customers from other countries is
Rs.10.62 million (2017: Bs.Mil).

{c) The Company’s customer base is diverse with no single customer accounting for more than 10% of net revenue as
at June 30, 2018,

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2018

48. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Annual Report 2018 1%

Factory Othars
2018 2017 2018 2007
Number of employees at Juns 30,
- Parmanant 44 41 119 105
- Contractual 500 540 75 58
Average number of employvess during the year
- Parmanant 44 39 113 103
- Contractual 470 488 68 52
47. SHAHRIAH SCREENING DISCLOSURE
2018 2017
Convent Sharlah Convent Shariah
-lonal Compilant -ional Compliant
Rupees In ‘000
Bank balances 208,173 288,680 688,811 116,578
Accrued mark-up 28,079 20,230 13,417 10,867
Short term borrowings 2,078,188 1,553,688 144,479 847,907
Revenue - 186,772,383 - 10,740,631
Other income
a) Profit on saving accounts and term deposit receipts
Others including exchange gain on actual currency 432 2,240 2,269 1,611
d) Others including exchange gain on
actual currency - 152,124 - 18,247
Mark-up { interest expense 121,282 73,350 136,231 66,230

48. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and raclassified, wheravar considared nacessary, 1o comply with the
requirements of the Companles Act, 2017 and for the purposes of comparison and better presentation. Following major

reclassification have been made:

Reclassified to component

Trade and other payable
{Unclaimed dividend)

Trade and other payable
{Unclaimed dividend)

Trade and other payable
{Accruad liabilitiaz)

Reclasaifled to component

Unelaimed dividend
{Dlsclosed on the face of statement of financial position)

Unpaid dividend
(Disclosed on the face of statement of financial position)

Compensated absences

2017
—{Rupees In ‘000)—

14,082

24,604

6,073
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49,

50.

MNON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE

Tha Board of Diractors of the Company in their meating held on Septembar 19, 2018 have proposed final cash dividand
of Rs.15.6 (2017: Rs.15.0) per share, amounting o Rs. 332.35 million (2017: Rs.318.57 millien) and bonus issue of 21.304
million shares {2017: Mil} at the rate of one share for sach one share held amounting to Re 213.044 million {2017 Nil} for
the year anded June 30, 2018. The proposed dividend and izsus of bonus shares will be approved in the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Octaber 23, 2018,

These financial statements do not reflect the propezed dividend, which will be accounted for in the statement of changes
In equity as appropriation from unappropriated profit in year ending June 30, 2018,

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

Thesa financial statements ware authorised for issue on September 18, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

e Ml ) NN

Ahmad Kull Khan Khattak Ma). (R) Muhammad Zla itikhar Ahmed Khan
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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GHANDHARA

INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Electronic Dividend Mandate Form

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, dividend payable in cash
shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled
shareholders.

Shareholders are requested to send the attached Form duly filled and signed, along with attested copy of
their CNIC to the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited 4th Floor,
Karchi Chamber, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi. CDC shareholders are requested to submit their Dividend
Mandate Form and attested copy of CNIC directly to their broker (paricipant)/CDC.

I hareby communicata to receive my fulure dividends directly in my Bank account as detailed below:
Mame of sharehaolder e

Folio Number/CDC Account NO. & mmmmmm s of Ghandhara Industires Limited

Contact number of shareholder

Title of Account

IBAN (%) R e e s S e e - S s Sl s e

MName of Bank
Bank branch 0000000 1 e et s s nm e m s m e
Mailing Address of Branch = ssemmmmer e e e
CNIC No. (attach attested COpy) & —mm=mmmmmem e e

NTHM (in case of corporate entity] @ ------mmmmmmmr e e

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and to the best of my knowledge; | shall keep
the Company informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future.

Shareholder's Signature Date
MOTES:

* Please provide complete [BAN (International Bank Account Number), after checking with your
concerned Bank branch to enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.
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Proxy Form

IWe

being a Shareholder of Ghandhara Industries Limited and holding Ordinary Shares as per
Register Folio No or CDC Participant's |.D. No. Afc No. hereby appoint
Mr/ Mrs of or failing him/her
Mr / Mrs of as my/our Proxy in

my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 55! Annual General Mesting of the

Company to be held on Tuesday, 23™ October, 2018 at 11:30 AM and any adjournment thereof.

Affix Revenue Stamp(s) of Rupess fiva
Executant's Signature on Revenue Stamp(s)
{Signature should agree with the Specimen Signature registered with the Company).

Executant's Computerized National identity Card Number (CNIC or Passport Number)

First Witness Signature Second Witness Signature
Mame in Block letters and Address Mame in Elock letters and Address
Computerized Mational ldentity Card Number Computerized Mational ldentity Card Number
ar Passport Number of Witness or Passport Number of Witness
Proxy's Signature Proxy's Signature
Proxy's CNIC Mumber or Passport Number Proxy's CNIC Number or Passport Number
NOTES:

1. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company may appoint
any person as hisfher proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. The proxy shall have the right to attend,
speak and vote in place of the shareholder appointing him/her at the meeting.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the Shareholder or by his/her Attorney, duly
authorized in writing and person appointed proxy. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors
resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form to the
company.

3.  The Proxy Form duly completed, must be deposited at the Company's Reqgistered Office at F-3, Hub Chauki
Road S.1.T.E, Karachi not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

4. Shareholders whose holdings are in the Central Depository System (CDS) and their proxies both, should
attach with this form, attested copies of their Computerized National Identity Card or (altested copies
of first four pages of lheir passport). To facilitate identiflication al the AGM, the proxy should bring his/her
original Compulerized National |dentity Card or passporl. In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the
time of the meeting.
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Ghandhara Industries Limited
Add: F-3, Hub Chauki Road, S1T.E., Karachi - 75730, Pakistan.



